
REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

E nhanc i ng A cc ou nta b i I ity,

r I JUil ?0zr r^,f;P.foRr

I-C' r"'t

Be.n-r"^ \^244, OF

-..--
/ r,^,ir.
j ( tl:

I i I A I I ., ',
Kl.11 ,,.,

.-.-t..,.lit(,1 r.\.

THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

ON

UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE, 2023



a

i'o ifl 1Lri)i
:.1 fir(lisl.

i0 JAI t01t,

REC E, VED

ll.t)i1i
!1.r,,.,,

RI,:
:,\i.lrl
{liuti

UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

3OTH JUNE 2023

Prepared in accordance with the Accrual Basis of Accounting Method under the International

Public Sector Accounaing Standards (IPSAS)



t

I.INIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
Annual Report and Fmancial Slatements for the Frnancrul Year ended 3Oh June 2023

I lt,.L - !



TINIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 3Ah June 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

l.

3.

4-

5.

6.

7-

8.

9-

10.

ll.

12.

lJ.

la.

15.

16.

17.

It.

19.

,0.

CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMEIYT

STATEMEIII OFTHE UNIVERSTTY'S Pf,RFOMANCf, ACAINST PREDf,TERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2022202, rviti

STATEMENI OF COUNCIL MEMBf,RS' RESPONSIBIL|TIES........... ..,..,..,.................,..............,......... rrr

REPORTOFTHf, AUDITOR Cf,Nf,RAL FOR THE FINANCTAL STAIEMENT OFTHE UNIVf,RSITV OF NAIROBI.,.... Ttti

STATEMENT OF FTNANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 202t.....,...............,..,..,....,.,.....,.....,,..,..,....., I

STATEMENT Or FINANCIAL POSmION AS AT t0 JUNE 2021.........,., ............,.......,...,..,........,........,....... 2

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN Nf,T ASSETS FOR THf, YEAR ENDED JO JTINE 202f,.. ..................,....3

STATEMf,r{T OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR f,NDED 30 JUNf, 2023 1

STATEMENT OF COMPARTSON OF BUDCET AND ACTTIAL AMOUNTS FOR, THE Yf,AR ENDED 30 JTINE 2023................ 5

il'lrc



UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
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I. ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS A}ID GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A; Acronyms and Abbreviations

CBK Central Bank of Kenya

ICPAK Instirute ofCenified Public Accountants ofKenya

IPSAS Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

MD Medical Doctor

OAG Office of the Auditor General

PFM Public Finance Management

PPE Property Plant & Equipment

PSASB Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

SAGAs Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies

SC State Corporations

VC Vice Chancellor

DSP Direct Service Providers

ICT Information Communication & Technology

CUE Commission of Universities Education

UEB University Executive Board

MOU Memoranda of Understanding

IGU Income Generating Unit

IGA Income Generating Activities

UON University of Nairobi

CBA Collective Bargaining Agreement

EPMIS E- Procurement Management lnformation System

KUCCPS Kenya Universities and Colleges Central Placement Service

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

B: Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Mrnrgcment- Members of Management directly entrusted with the responsibility of
fi nancial resources of the organization.

Comp!ratiye Yesr- Means the prior period.
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2. KEY UNIVERSITY INFORMATION AND EXECUTIVE BOARD

a) Background information

The inception'of the University of Nairobi is traced back to '1956. with the establishment
of the Royal Technical College. On 20th May 1964, the Royal College Nairobi was

renamed University College Nairobi as a constituent college of inter- territorial. Federal
University of East Africa. In 1970, the University College Nairobi transformed into the
first National University in Kenya and was renamed the University of Nairobi. Following
the enactment of the Universities Act, 2012, the University of Nairobi was awarded its
charter on lst March 20l3.The University of Nairobi is domiciled in Kenya.
The University of Nairobi is the oldest University in Kenya, and the largest university in
the East and Central Africa Region. From its humble beginnings with 215 students in 1956
(64 years ago) when it started as the Royal Technical College, it has an enrolment ofover
65,000 students today. It ofTers a wide range of academic programmes in its ten faculties
namely; Faculty of Education in Kikuyu Campus, Faculty of Health Sciences in Kenyatta
Hospital, Faculty of Agriculture, Faculty of Veterinary Medicine in Upper Kabete
Campus, Faculty of Arts & Social Sciences, Faculty of Engineering, Faculty of Built
Environment & Design in Main Campus, Faculty of Science & Technology in Chiromo
Campus, Faculty of Law in Parklands Campus, and Faculty of Business & Management
Sciences in Lower Kabete Campus. The University has campus also in Mombasa and
Kisumu offering courses which cut across different faculties
The programmes fall under the broad areas of humanities and social sciences, natural
sciences and mathematics, engineering and the built environment, arts and design,
computing and informatics, law and business, medicine and health sciences, agriculture
and food sciences, veterinary and animal sciences, and educalion.
The University cunently has the largest concentration of scholars and about 50% ofall the
professors in the country. It has continued to be a center of intellectual life, a locus of
research activity extending the frontiers of knowledge, a resource for professional
development, and a key player in the growing global network ofscholarship.
The overall performance of the University has been good, since its score in the government
performance contract evaluation has been consistently rated as excellent. On the whole, the
University has maintained a leadership position nationally and regionally.
The operational environment for the Higher Education sector in the country is highly
dynamic such that the University needs to understand and align itself to changes taking
place in the University sub sector for it to adequately cope with the new environmental
realities. These changes are captured in the Legal Framework with the implementation of
the Constitution of Kenya 2010, the enactment ofthe Universities Act. No. 42 in2012,the
establishment ofthe Commission for University Education and the award of charters to 75
private and public universities, which have led to increased competition among
universities.
Even as it operates in this environment, the University has a duty to maintain its leadership
position and grow it further. lt has to continue to be the best and retain its leadership
position in the higher education sector. Further, it has to embrace quality, retain the best
staffand mobilize additional resources to maintain this leadership position.

b) PrincipalActivities

The Mandate of the University of Nairobi is Teaching and Leaming, Research and
Innovation, Consultancy and Community Service. The objectives and functions of the
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Universily are given in detail in the University of Nairobi Charter 2013.
Our Vision
A world-Class University Commitled to scholarly excellence
Our Mission
To provide quality university education apd training and to embgdy the aspirations of the
Kenyan people and the globar community through creation, preservalion, integration,
transmission and utilization of knowledge
Motto
The motto of the University is: ln Unity and Work
Our Core Values
The University shall be bound by the National Values and principles of Governance in
Articles l0 and 232 of the constitution. The University shall be further guided by the
following core values:

- Freedom of thought and expression: We shall promote and defend freedom of
thought and expression in all our academic inquiry and activities.

- Innovativeness: We shall be innovative in solving our day-to_day problems and
carry out our activities in order to deliver new value to our customers.- Commitment: We are committed to the mission of the University and always act
in the best interests ofthe University.

- Trust: We trust the good intentions of others, view conflicts as positive and
resolve them creatively and effectively to meet the vision and mission of the
University.

- Care: We foster a leadership culture that cares, is people-focused, that connects lo
and is responsive to the needs of internal and extemal customers, and promotes
stewardship over University resources.

- Teamwork: we work together as a team to realize the collective results that the
University wishes to achieve.

c) University of Nairobi Key Management

The University's day-to{ay management is under the following key organs:

LTNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
Annual Reporr and Financial sratenenrsfor rhe Financial year ended 3ah June 202i

DESIGNATION
Prof. Amukowa Anangwe Chairperson of Counc il
Mr. Ahamed Sheikh Abdullahi Member of council
Dr. Parmain Ole Narikae Member of council
Ms. Caren K. Omwenga Member of council
Dr. Sally Toroitich Member of council
Mr. Samuel Kiiru Rep. PS. The National Treasury
Dr. Beatrice Inyangala

Prof. Stephen Gitahi Kiama hancellor

NO NAME
I
t

3

{.
5

6

7

8

I
10.

ll.

Prof. Julius. A. Ogeng'o Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Academic Affairs)
Prof. Margaret. J. Hutch inson Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research, Innovation and Ente
Mr. Brian O. Ouma Chief Operations Officer (Ag)

rprise)
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I.INIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
Annual Reporl and Financial Statentents for the Financial Year ended 3Uh June 2023

d) University of Nairobi Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30 June 2023
and who had direct fiducia res onsibili were:

e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangement
o Finance and Strategy Committee of the council
o Audit and Risk Management Committee of the council
o Human Resource and Administration Committee of the council
o Commission for University Education
o Ministry of Education
o The National Treasury
o Office of the Auditor General
o Olfice of the Controller of Budgets
o The Universities Funding Board

f) University of Nairobi Headquarters
Harry Thuku Road
P.O. Box 30197-00 100
Main Campus
Nairobi, Kenya

g) University of Nairobi Contacts
Telephone: (254)020-49 I 000
E-mail:vc@uonbi.ac.ke, dvcaf@uonbi.ac.ke, fo@uonbi.ac.ke
Website: www.uonbi.ac.ke

h) University of Nairobi Bankers
ABSA Bank Kenya PLC
Market Branch
P.O Box 3001 8-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Kenya Commercial Bank
University Way Branch
P.O. Box 720H0300
Nairobi, Kenya

Standard Chartered Bank
P.O Box 30003-00 t 00

Nairobi, Kenya

No. Neme Dedsnrtlon
I Prof. Stephen Gitahi Kiama Vice-Chancellor
2 Prof. Julius. A. Osens'o Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Academic Aflairs)
3 Prof. Margaret. J. Hutchinson Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research, Innovation and Enterprise)

4. Mr. Brian 0. Ouma Chief Operations Officer (Ag)

5. Mr. Bernard D. Niuguna Registrar Administration (Ag)
6. Mr. Stephen K. Kimeli Director Finance (Ag)

7 Mr. Seith O. Abeka Managing Director, UNES Ltd
8. Mr. John A. O. Orindi Director Corporate Affairs
I Mr. Paul N- Kariuki Director ICT
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i) Indepcndcnt Auditor
Auditor General
Oflice of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.Q. Box 30084 CPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

j) Principel Lcgel Adviser
The Anomey General
State Law Officc
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112 City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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3. THE UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI COUNCIL

Council Member Name P ro file

Prof. Amukowa Anangwe
BA, MA, PhD (Political Science)

Prof. Amukowa Anangwe, Chairman of Council
Prof. Anangwe is an independent member ofthe council.
Born in 1952, Prof. Anangwe holds a PhD in Political Science
from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom. He also
obtained a Masters degree in Public Policy Analysis from the
Institute of Social Studies, Erasmus University-Rotterdam, and
Bachelor of Arts in Govemment from the University of Nairobi.
He has also undergone specialized training in management of
technical assistance and public sector management.
Prof. Anangwe is a scholar of intemational repute and has also
proven experience in high-level and strategic leadership and
management of public institutions, having served as a Cabinet
Minister of the Republic of Kenya in three different portfolios,
namely, Minister of Cooperatives Development, Minister of
State, Office of President and Minister of Medical Services. He
has worked for most part of his career in the academia rising
from Lecturer and Senior Lecturer in the Department of Political
Science, University of Nairobi, and later Associate Professor and

Professor, Department of Political Science and Public
Administration, The University of Dodoma, Tanzania. He is
currently an intemational consultant in multidisciplinary policy
research, and has undertaken several assignments for the World
Bank,/IDA, UNDP, UNFPA, EEC, African Union, IGAD, East
African Community, Govemments and bilateral agencies.
Prof. Anangwe is a holder of the Elder of the Order of Golden
Heart (EGH) which is a Presidential commendation of the
second highest honour of the Govemment of Kenya awarded for
exemplary qualities, leadership, achievements of heroism and
patriotism. He is also a member of professional societies,
namely, Fellow, Economic Development Institute, The World
Bank (Washington), member, Society for Intemational
Development (Rome), and member, Intemational Political
Science Association.
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ProfileCouncil Member Name

Ms, Caren Omwenga
MEd

Ms. Caren Omwenga, member of Council
Ms. Caren Omwenga is an independent member of the council
and chairs the audit and risk committee.
Born iri 1957, Ms. Carren K'. Omwenga holds a Master of
Education Degree from Kenyatta University, She has l2 years
of Teaching and Training experience and over l5 years,
experience in development work spanning the public, NCOs,
Private sector and the United Nations both as a program Office
and a Consultanr. She is currently specialized in Capacity
Building, Project Planning and Management, Cender Training
and Programming, Food and Water Security Assessment, and
Human Resources Development and Management.

Dr. Parmain ole Narikae, PhD,
Bsc. MBA, PhD(Business
Administration)

Dr. Parmain ole Narikae, PhD, member of Council
Dr. Permain is an independent member, the chairperson of the
human resource and administration committee and a member of
the finance and strategy committee of the University of Nairobi.
Dr. Parmain ole Narikae is the Managing Director, Kenya
Industrial Estates. He holds Doctorate in Business
Adminislration. He also holds MBA and Bachelor of Science
Degree in Business Administration (First Class Honors) from
United States International University. He is a graduate of the
European Institute of
Business Administration (INSEAD), as well as the Strathmore
Business School and IESE Spain, Advanced Management
Programme. He has wide experience as a career banker having
served in senior leadership position as Chief Manager, General
Manager and Executive Director in Co-operative Bank and
Chase Bank. He has Served as Chair and Director in various
Board of State Corporations. These include: Vice Chair &
Council member Maasai Mara University; Chair. Water Service
Trust Fund; Director, Unclaimed Financial Assets Authority. He
is a member of the Institute of Directors.
Dr. Narikae has also served as adjunct faculty at the United
States Intemational University Africa. Dr. Narikae was awarded
the Moran of the Burning Spear (MBS) by H.E the president of
Re ublic of Ken a for his contribution to the Nalion
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Council Member Name Profile

Dr. Sally Toroitich
Bcom, MBA, PhD(Strategic
Management)

Dr. Sally Toroitich, member of Council
Dr.Toroitich is an independent member of council and chairs the

finance and strategy commiltee.
Born in 1970, Di. Sally Toroitich holds Doctor of philosophy iri
strategic management degree and has done all the finance course
work, Masters in Business Administration Finance option, from
Moi University and an undergraduate degree in finance and

accounting option from Kenya Methodist University, Dr
Toroitich also holds a diploma in business management from
Kenya Institute of management.
Dr. Toroitich has been teaching on part time basis in various
universities; University of Eldoret, Moi university, Nazarene

university, Mt. Kenya University, Elgon view college in the

areas of slrategic Management, Finance and Accounting, Human
resource, Entrepreneurship, purchasing and procurement, she has

also worked on a part time basis as a board member for a

period of six years in the county Assembly of Elgeyo Marakwet.
Dr, Toroitich has been a member of Board of management in
several lnstitutions including Paul Boit secondary school,
Kessup mixed day secondary school, Muno secondary, Tugen
Estate secondary school, Mindililwo special school. In addition,
Dr Toroitich is a certified mediator after receiving some training
from Serein Mediation Centre. Furthermore Dr Toroitich is an

accredited mediator in the High Court of Eldoret.
Dr, Toroitich has gone through a strategic leadership course and

a training on conduct of meeting and Minute writing course from
Kenya school of Government.
Dr, Toroitich does farming in Elgeyo marakwet, and business
services in Uasin C ishu County

Mr. Ahamed Sheikh Abdullahi
Dip, Msc

Mr. Ahamed Sheikh Abdullahi, member of Council
Mr. Ahamed is an independent member of council and a member
of the human resource and administration. and audit and risk
committee.
Bom in 1969. Mr. Ahamed S. Abdullahi holds Msc Health
Informatics as Swansea University, UK, Diploma in Health
Records and informatics technology at the KMTC, Nairobi. He

has trained in population and health informatics with over l5
years senior management experience with Kenya Government
and Humanitarian and development Organization in the horn of
Africa. As a senior manager he provided leadership management
and strategic direction for arid programs including USAID, DfiD
and UN funded programs in Kenya and Somalia. This included
overseeing financial management and administrative activities as

well as ensuring overall compliance with donor rules and

relations, financial management, international and local
personnel recruitment and management subcontractor
management and project start up and close out.
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ProfileCouncil Member Name

Mr. Samuel Kiiru
BA(Econ), MA(Econ)

Mr. Samuel Kiiru, Alternate member of Council
Born in 1969, Mr. Samuel Kiiru is a member of Council
representing the Principal Secretary, The National Treasury. He
is the Director Plahning and Head of Birdget policy at the
National Treasury. He holds a Master Degree in Economics
from the Carleton University, Oftawa, Canada and a Bachelor
Degree in Economics from the University of Nairobi.

Dr. Beatrice Inyangala
B.Ed, MA, PhD

Dr. Beatrice Inyangala, member of Council
Dr. Muganda is an executive member of the council.
Dr Beatrice Muganda Inyangala is the Principal Secretary, State
Department for Higher Education and Research, Ministry of
Education, Kenya Government. Her areas ofexpertise are public
policy, gender inclusivity, quality assurance, teaching
methodology, govemance and fundraising. Prior to her current
appointment, she served as the Deputy Executive Director and
the Director of Higher Education at the Partnership for African
Social and Govemance Research (PASGR).
Dr Muganda led the Pedagogical Leadership in Africa (pedaL)
project, working closely with multiple partners in distinct
contexts to drive sustainable change in the delivery of university
programmes to strengthen graduate competencies. She oversaw
the training of more than 1000 teaching staff in 60 universities
on the African continent in innovative pedagogies.
Dr Muganda is an accomplished educationist with programme
planning, design and implementation exp€rtise. She has
facilitated formal partnerships among African universities, with
No(hem partner universities and international knowledge
networks around innovative projects that promote excellence,
relevance and access in higher education at both masters and
doctoral levels.
Dr Muganda has extensive knowledge of issues, challenges and
opportunities in African higher education and has proactively
engaged various policy actors in higher education
transformation. She has also been involved in education policy
debates globally: EU-Africa policy dialogues, Wilton park
dialogues, The Africa-America Institute, London School of
Economics Africa Summit, Africa Sciedev, University World
News, Guardian Global Development Professionals Network,
and the Association of African Universities. She has contributed
to Kenya's national policy documents such as the Medium Term
Framework on Education and Traini for Vision 2010, and the
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The University does not have a company secretary. The Vice Chancellor is the secretary of the
council. Legal matters ofthe University are handled through the Director Legal Service who is a
member of ICS.

Council Member Name Profile

National Manpower Survey.
She holds a B.Ed and M. Phil in Planning and Economics of
Education from Moi University, a PhD from the University of
Athens, and has 'received further training at the Intemational
lnstitute of Educational Planning in Paris.

Prof. Stephen Gitahi Kiama, PhD,
BVM, MSC, PhD (Structural Biology)

Prof, Stephen Gitahi Kiama, VC and Secretary to the
Council
Prof. Kiama serves as the secretary to the council.
Born in 1964. He is currently the Vice Chancellor. He is a

Professor of Structural Biology from University of Bern in
Switzerland. He was the Deputy Vice-Chancellor, Human
Resource and Administration and the Acting Deputy Vice
Chancellor in-charge of Finance, Planning and Development, a
position he held till his appointment as the Vice Chancellor.
Previously he served as the Principal, College of Agriculture and
Veterinary Sciences from 2016 to 2019, Director of Wangari
Maathai Institute for Peace and Environmental Studies from
2010 to 201 6, Chairman of the Department of Veterinary
Anatomy and Physiology from 2005 to 201 0, Acting dean of the
Faculty of Veterinary Medicine in 2014 and Associate Dean of
the Faculty of Veterinary Medicine from 2003 to 2010.
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4. THE UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI KEY MANAGEMENT

Name Details
I

I
I /

Prof. Stephen G. Kiama
Bachelor degree in Veterinary Medicine, Master in Veterinary
Anatomy (Nairobi), Doctor of Philosophy degree in Structural
Biology, (Bem)

Vice-Chancellor

2

Prof. Julius A. Ogeng'o
Bachelor of Science Anatomy, Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery degrees, PhD, MD, (Nairobi)

Deputy Vice-

Chancellor (Academic

Alfairs)

3

Prof. Margoret J. Hutchinson
Bachelor of Science in Agriculture. Master of Science in Agronomy,
(Nairobi), PhD in Horticulture (Guelph)

Deputy Vice-

Chancellor (Research,

Innovation and

Enterprise)

4

Mn Brian O. Ouma
Master of business Administration, Strategic Management (Nairobi)

Chief Operations

Officer (Ag)

5

Mr. Benard D. Njuguna
Bachelor of Arts, Postgraduate Diploma in Mass Communication,
Master of Arts in Communication Studies, (Nairobi)

Registrar,

Administration (Ag)
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The University does not have a company secretary. Legal matters ofthe University are handled
through the Director Legal Services who is a member of ICS.

Name Details
6

Mr. Stephen K. Kimeli
Bachelor of Commerce, Master of Busines Administration, (Kabarak
UniversiW), Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

Director, Finance (Ag)

7

ML Seith o. Abeka
Bachelor of Economics, Master of Arts Gender and Dev. Studies
(Nairobi)

Managing Director,

UNES Ltd

8

Mr. John A.O. Orindi
Bachelor of Arts, Master of Artslntemational Relations (Nairobi)

Director Corporate

Affairs

9

Mr. Paul .N. Kariuki
Bachelor of Science in Computer Science, Masters in applied
Computer Science. (Nairobi)

Director ICT
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CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT
The Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 reflect major

strides made by the University against many odds and indicate
that the ongoing reforms in key functional areas are a step in
the right direction. The University of Nairobi Council is
committed to offer the required support aimed at
strengthening the reform agenda and accelerating the
transformation culture sweeping across the institution. The
Council will promote policies that offer an enabling
environment for the University to thrive especially given the
prevailing situalion of shrinking govemment capitation
against an increasing need for resources to grow and develop
the university towards world-class excellence. The University
also needs to sustain measures that will enable it to stay ahead
in a competitive higher education sector. The achievement of
these goals will need strict financial discipline with the
resources that we have at our disposal supported by more

aggressive measures to raise additional revenue. The financial statements offer evidence of some
ofthe initiatives that have been put in place under the two broad areas. I would like to commend
the management, led by the Vice-Chancellor, for demonstrating such foresight by instituting
changes in the financial management of the university and the governance structures which are
already beginning to bear fruit. The emphasis on consolidating data on crucial functions of the
university gives a strong basis for accurate decision-making based on past trends and future
projections.

On efforts to raise funds to support university activities, I would like to commend the Chancellor,
Dr Vijoo Rattansi, whose stewardship saw the registration and launch of the University of Nairobi
Foundation. The Foundation will be used as a vehicle to mobilise funds to support the core
functions ofthe Un iversity.

Financial Performance
During the financial year 2022/2023 the University registered a deficit of Ksh. 986 billion
compared to Ksh. 2.1 billion in the previous year owing to an increase in revenue from Ksh.
10.l6 billion to Ksh. I 1.6 billion. The University has recorded fair improvement in its financial
performance as we inovate revenue generating activities and employing prudent financial
measures to reduce expendilure.

Strategic Direction
The University has continued to be guided by the Strategic Plan 2018-2023, which emphasises
the development of key functional areas of teaching and leaming, research and innovation,
community outreach. The activities undertaken in these areas are aimed at enhancing the
Universily's visibility and competiveness both locally and internationally. The University is also
cognisant of the ever-present need to remain relevant to the needs of society and has always
sought to integrate with the wider Kenyan public by paying attention to the national development
agenda. The successful implementation of the 2022/2023 performance contract with the
government is an example of the University's commitment to the national obligation.
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Future Outlook
Thc University will continuc to rcvamp its corc incomc generating activitics with a view to
enhancirry and sustsining its frnancial base. Going fonrard" the Univcrsity of Nairobi Foundation
will be cnabled as the main vehicle for attracting funds. A raft of other pmposals arc also undcr
considcration and will rcceive the support ofcouncil as and whcn they are prcscnted. I would like
to congratulatc thc mansgemcnt for these efforts.
Finally, I would like to ftank thc Govcmmcnt for the support it has continucd to give towards the
rcalisation of the Univcrsity's mandatc. In the ycar endcd 30 Junc 2023 the govemment olKenya
rcmittcd to thc Univcrsity a total of Ksh. 5.61 billion as capitation. Allow mc also o take this
opportunity to thank our research panners, alumni, industry, and other stakeholders for
their support as we stcar thc

(, v

UKOWA AN WE

u)XsitY togrcatness

..'.tt
BA(Nbr), MA(NLL Ph
Cbrlrmm ofCouncil
26 Jrnuery 2024
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6. REPORT OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR
Iam pleased to pres€nt the Annual Report and Financial
Slatements of the University of Nairobi for the year ended 30 June
2023.
The University's financial performance during the reference year
was influenced by many internal factors and a numbcr of
unavoidable events on the national and global scenes. The eruption
of the war in Europe was also a major global economic challenge.
Al the national level, the effect of the anticipated general elections
also created some degree of uncertainty within the business
environment. In the higher education sector, the University had to
contend with challenges like dwindling capitation from the
exchequer, hlgh competition for students, and declining enrolment
of self-sponsored students among o(her issues.
On a more positive note, however, the University recorded a

number of improvements as a result of the deepening of the Vice-Chancellor's reform agenda that
focused on the aspects of govemance, financial disciplinc, and data management. The new efforts
led to positive changes such as cost reduction and a reduced budgetary deficit. I'he adjustments to
lhe govemance system in order to do away with redundant structures greatly reduced the cost of
running the num€rous offices that we had in place and released and in the process releascd some
lunds towards the improvement of services and the fulfilment of other priority financial
obliSations. The financial discipline introduced through activities likc the use of vehicle tracking
systems, betcr enforcement of the fuel card, and the continued use of virtual meetings and
holding key university events virtually, such as graduation, translated to more savings. We were
also able to transfer to a cashless system and this introduced greater efliciency and accountability
in our transactions. Through data reforms, whose emphasis is evidence-based decision making,
the University is in a position to morc accurately project its revenue and match the same with the
work that needs to bc done. Through some of these measures, the University was able to reduce
its debt burden. I am happy to report that we are up to date with the remittance of statutory
deductions as we continue to work on rcducing the arrears. The University has also fully
implemented the CBAs (2017 -2022\.

A look at the figures
During the FY 2022n0T, the Unive rsity registered a deficit of Kshs 986 bilion compared to a
deficit of Kshs 2.1 billion registered ia FY 2021/2022. 

-l'otal 
revenue amounted to Kshs I L6

billion compared to Kshs 10.16 billion the previous year, whereas total expenditure amounted lo
Kshs 12.85 billion compared ro Kshs 12.27 billion in FY 2021/2022.

Going forn'ard
The University will sustain the financial reforms as we continue to pursue new avenues to achieve
an even bener financial outlook in the next financial year. We shall target more strategic
pa(nerships, expansion of the grants portfolio, higher rate of international students, and
investment in science, technology and engineering including bringing on board industry partners.
The University will also continue to strengthen links with the Alumni Association and also grow
thc University of Nairobi Foundation which was launched at the end of the year. The UoN
Foundation will support our fundraising activities in a rargeted manner. Thc University will also
implement people reforms in order to effectively drive the planned improvements in all areas. We
are also planning to invest in the refurbishment of the University's aging infrastructurc whose
repair and maintenance costs are taking up resources that could be put to other uses.
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7. STATEMEI{T OF THE I,,INIVERSITY'S PERFOMANCE AGAINST
PREDf,TERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FT 202212023

Tlle University of Nairobi had 2 straregic pillars and objectives *ithin thc currcnr Strategib plan
for the FY 20222023. These srategic pillars wcre as follows:

Pillar l: Teaching & Learning
Pillar 2: Research Innovation & Entcrprise

The University of Nairobi developed its annual work plan based on the above 2
pillan/Themes/lssues. Asscssmcnt of thc Board's performance agains its annual work plan was
donc on a quarterly basis. The University achieved its performance targets sct for the Fy
2022n023 period for the 2 strategic pillan, as indicared in thc tablc bclow:

The live $.polnt Reform Agende eimed a( transforming the University into:-
'A vibrant, rclevant and Sustainable University"
To inspire and achieve these aspirations, there was need to institute comprehensive reforms at the
lJniversity of Nairobi. The planned reforms will advance the Univcrsiry onro the trajectory to
excellence and foster an entrcpreneurial and innovation culture.
The reforms will be guided by the University ofNairobi Philosophy and the following Principles

Teaching and
traming

To producc 40
quslity
graduates in
spocialized
alcas

Number of
Graduates

To design and
implcment rclevant
and innovative
teaching and leaming
programmes

78 graduates in
specialized areas
produced.

Rescarch,
Innovation and
Enterprise

To mount 13

proactive
rescarch./train ing
collaborative
engagements

Numbcr of
collaborative
engagcments
mounted

Writc propomls
Engage Research
Partners
Sign Memorandum of
undcrstanding

32 pmactive
researc h./col laborati ve
cngaSemcnts
achicvcd

Research,
Innovalion and
Enterprise

To conduct 8

webinars on
Covid-19

Numbcr of
webinars
mounted

Crcate awsreness on
the facG ofcovid-19

25 Covid-19
webinars mounted

Rescarch,
Innovation and
Enterprise

To have one
Covid-19
rescsrch project
mounted

Successful
mounling of
research
project.

l. Crcate
proposals to
sttract
funding

2. Implement
resegrch
modalities

5 covid-19 Research
Projects mounted
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. Alignment to the core mandate of the University

. Efliciency and accountability

. Impact on society

. Sustainability

. Value lor money

The University is guided by the Philosophy for the need to inspire and connect with the Kenyan

community, to provide leadership and stewardship, and to give hope and faith to the Kenyan
society that it can excel in whatever it chooses to do with passion, moral responsibility and a
strong sense of patriotism.

The University of Nairobi will be:

The destination of choice for outstanding local and international students, scholars, innovators,
and industry.
The preferred knowledge partner for government, private sector, development partners, and

society in general on ideas, solutions, critique, and policy directions.

The trusted resource in thought leadership and impact on the society culturally, politically,
socially, and economically.

Agenda Number l: Data-driven management reforms
We shall invest our energies and resources towards setting up a comprehensive and integrated

data management system. This will entail reengineering our business processes and enhancing
and embedding the use oftechnology in:

Curriculum content delivery
Student management including the administration ofexams and timetabling.

Human resource management

Financial management

Data will change how decisions are made, optimize the deployment of resources, and improve
overall systemic output.

Agenda number 2 - Governance Reforms
University has over the years grown in size and complexity. To stay in step with the needs of the
university, there is a compelling need to refresh our management, administrative, oversight, and
govemance structures.
This will entail:
. Elimination of redundant and overlapping systems, processes, structures. and reporting

centres.
o In-building ofthe flow ofauthority, resources, responsibility, and accountability to the lowesl

levels
o Sharing and devolution of power to enhance accountability, efficiency, and effectiveness
. Institutionalization ofefficient decision, policy-making, and implementation at every level
o Refocusing our human, financial and institutional resources to the core mandate of the

University.

Agenda number 3- Curricula
Embark on the path of fit-for-purpose training.
To do this, we will:
o Review the courses offered at the University of Nairobi with a view to assess the overall cost

of implementation of each program and the level to which they respond to market, industry,
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societal, and govemment needs.
. Weed out redundant and overlapping courses and programs
. Interrogate the depth of substance coverage in the delivery of curricula and inculcation of

appropriate practical skills and entrepreneurial spirit and culture.
. Recalibrate our metrics.of world class-talent and make a deliberate effort towards the

intemationalization ofthe Universitv-

Agenda number 4- The financial reforms.
Currently, the University is operating under a huge financial deficit. This impedes its path to
world class status. Consequently, these reforms are geared towards institutionalizing prudent
financial managemenl and controls to put the University back to positive financial health and path
to sustainability.
Specifically, this reform agenda willaddress:
o Efficient and participatory budget formulation mechanisms, fiscal and budgetary discipline. Efficient payment and banking services
o Review Systems to stop revenue leakage, wastage, and optimize utilization ofresources
o Re-engineer grants management to effectively support research
o Commercializalion of our intangible assets.

An efficient and optimal internal financial ecosystem will allow the university to move with
confidence towards scaling extemal resource mobilization with a high level of confidence that
any cent received will render I00% value for money and eliminate the fiscal deficit.

Agenda number 5- People-focused reforms
The University students, staff, partners and our collaborators are the foundation of the success of
the University. The university will therefore proactively take deliberate sleps to brand itselfand to
add value to its staffand students.
This reform agenda aims to:

o ldentify and celebrate the talents and achievements ofour staffand students,
o Exploit intangible assets and promote research and technology transfer ecosystem
. Ensure that the University attracts, recruits, supports, and retains outstanding staff and

students
o Provide a diverse, inclusive, fair, and open work environment where our people give their

best to their work and feel valued Intemationalize both facultv and students
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8. CORPORATEGOVERNANCESTATEMENT
The University of Nairobi Council is responsible for the overall management and governance of
the institution and is accountable to the stake-holders for ensuring that the institution
complies with the law and the best practices in Educational Govemance and Business Ethics.

The Council members are commifted to the need to conduct the business and operations ofthe
University with integrity and in accordance with Generally Accepted Standards and endorse the

intemationally developed principles of good govemance.

COUNCIL MEMBERS
The Council is appointed in accordance with the Universities Act" 2012 (No. 42 of 2012) by
the Cabinet Secretary as follows- (a) Chairperson; (b) the Principal Secretary in the Ministry for
the time being responsible for the university education; (c) the Principal Secretary in the

Ministry for the time being responsible for Finance; (d) five members appointed by the Cabinet
Secretary through an open process; and (e) the Vice-Chancellor who shall be an ex officio
member and secretary ofthe Council. The full Council met five times in the year. The members

receive all information relevant to the discharge of their obligations in an accurate, timely and

clear manner so that they can guide and maintain full and effective control over strategic,
financial, operational and compliance issues. Except for direction and guidance on general

policy, the Council has delegated authority for conduct of day- to-day business to the Vice
Chancellor and the University Executive Board (UEB).The Council nonetheless retains
responsibility for establishing and maintaining the institution's overall control of financial,
operational and compliance issues as well as implementing strategies for the long term success

ofthe University.

Board Member (Names)
No. of Council meetings
attended Council

Prof. Miriam Were 4 Former Council Chair
Ms. Alison Kariuki 4 Former council Member

Mr Charles Orony Ogalo 4 Former council Member

Mr. Samuel Kiiru 4 Former council Member

Ms. Flora M.M Maghanga 4 Former council Member

Eng. Kariuki Muchemi 4 Former council Member

Mr. Darius Mogaka Ogutu 4 Former council Member

Mr. Hassan A. Mohamud 4 Former council Member

Prof. Amukowe Anangwe Current council Chair

Ms. Caren Omwenga Current council member

Dr. Sally Toroitich Current council member

Mr. Ahmed Abdullai Current council member

Dr. Parmain Narikae Current council member
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COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL
The main standing committees of the Council include;

Finance and Strategy Committee
Terms of Reference:

i. To review, evaluate and recommend for approval, lhe budget, financial forecasts and
procurement plans.

ii. To review. evaluate and recommend for approval major resource allocations and capital
investments for execution ofthe functions ofthe University.

iii. To review, evaluate and recommend for approval the operating and financial results and
to ensure effective, accurate, timely and transparent disclosure of pertinent information on
operalions and performance.

iv. To review on a quarterly basis the attainmenr of targets and objectives set out in the
finance, procurement, planning and development, legal, performance contracting
functions on the agreed performance measurement framework.

v. To review and recommend for approval rules and procedures for control of expenditure
and administration of financial matters.

vi. To exercise such other functions as the Council may confer from time to time.

The Audit and Risk Committee.
Terms of Reference:

i. Assist the vice-chancellor in enhancing intemal controls, governance and compliance in
order to improve elliciency, transparency and accountability

ii. Review audit issues raised by both intemal and extemal auditors.
iii. Resolve unsettled and unimplemented Public Accounts and Investment committees

(PAC/PlC) recommendations.
iv. Enhance communication between management, internal and extemal audit and fostering

effective internal functions.
v. Evaluate adequacy of management procedures with regard to issues relating to risk

management, control and govemance.
vi. Review and approve the audit charter where applicable, and intemal audit work plan.
vii. Review the internal and extemal audit findings and recommendations and proposing

corrective and preventive actions where necessary.
viii. Review the systems established to ensure financial management and intemal controls, as

well as compliance with policies, laws, regulations, procedures, plans and ethics.
ix. To exercise such other functions as the Council may confer from time to time.

Human Resource and Administration Committee
Terms of Reference:

i. To review and recommend the method and processes of recruitment, appointment,
promotion and discipline ofall staff.

ii. To review, evaluate and make recommendations on the overall University structure, staff
establishment, remuneration struclure, terms and conditions of service, and to provide for
the welfare of staffas and when necessary from time to time.

iii. To review, evaluate and make recommendations for approval matters touching and
relating to academic programmes, student affairs, policies, statutes, procedures and
processes.

iv. To exercise such other functions as the Council may confer from time to time.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS
The University has defined procedures and financial controls to ensure the reporting of
complete and accurate accounting information. These cover systems for obtaining authority for
major transactions and for ensuring compliance with laws and regulations that have significant
financial implications. Procedures are also in place to ensure. that assets are subject to
proper physical controls and that the institution remains structured to ensure appropriate
segregation of duties.
The University is exposed to a variety of risks that can have financial, operational and

compliance impacts on our performance, reputation and legitimacy to operate-

The effective management of risk is therefore critical to supporting the delivery of the
University's strategic objectives.
The University's approach to risk management is aimed at embedding a risk-aware culture in
all decision-making, and a commitment to managing risk in a proactive and effective manner.
This includes the early identification and evaluation of risks, the management and mitigation
of risks before they materialize, and dealing with them effectively in the event they do
materialize. Major risks such as natural disasters, which cannot be managed using internal
controls, are transferred to third parties in the insurance markets, to the extent considered
appropriate or possible.

The design, implementation and monitoring of the process of risk management is the
responsibility of the University. ln this regard, management is accountable to the University
Council.
An Internal Audit Department headed by the Chief Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee,
chaired by a council member, evaluates and coordinates the management of identified strategic
risks, financial and non-financial, faced by the University. Risk management processes are

reviewed regularly for continuing relevance and effectiveness. The Strategic Intemal Audit
Department reports to the Vice Chancellor and the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
reports to the Council.
A report on the risk management process that is being followed, as well as a summary of
the risk register and appropriate risk treatment plans, is presented to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and to the Council of the University on a regular basis.

COUNCIL MEMBERS EMOLUMENTS
The Council Members are paid sitting, mileage and Lunch allowance accord ing to
Government regulations which is included in the Council expenses in the Annual Report
and Financial Statements.
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9. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SECTION A

i. University's Operational and Financial performance
During the period ended 30 June 2023, lhe University registered a deficir.of Ksh 9g6 million
compared to a deficit of Ksh. 2.1 billion registered in the similar period ended 30 June 2022. The
improvement in performance was due to a reduction in expendituie on the University's operations
during the current financial year owing to continuous impiementation of University ieforms.
Total revenues increased in the period ended 30 June 2023 by Ksh. 1.49 billion in comparison to
a similar period ended 30 June 2022.

a) Revenues
Government Capitation
The University of Nairobi being a Govemment owned entity is supposed to be allocated
Recurrent and Development Capitation to finance its operations each year.
As in other years, Covemment funding in theFY 2022/2023 was insufficient to finance university
activities and only catered for 32%o of the budget, and covers only 620/o of the payroll costs. In the
period ended 30 June 2023, the capitation accounted for 36%o of the total revenue.
The capitation grant received was Ksh. 5.6 billion in the period ended 30 June 2023.
Tuition Fees

These comprise of fees from Govemment sponsored students (Module I) and Self-sponsored
Students (Module II) which accounred for 28% oflhe rotal revenue and 25% ofthe budget.
Other Incomes
other incomes include income from grants administrative fees, students' accommodation and
catering. staff house rent and other miscellaneous sources. This formed 5% of total revenue in the
period ended 30 June 2023 and financed 5% ofthe budget.
Research Grants Portfolio
The University has a vibrant Research culture, providing leadership in creativity and innovation.
The University continues to attract Research grants and currently his a high grant portfolio. In the
period ended 30 June 2023 we received Research grants amounting to x.h. q.t uitiion.

b) Expenses
Staff Costs
In the period ended 30 June 2023. the staff costs accounted for 50% of the total expenditure and
52% ofbudget. Capitation from Govemment financed about 62% ofthe payroll costi.
Operating and Administrative Expenses
This accounts for about 8% ofthe total expenditure.
Included under this category are:

i. Teaching and Office running expenses.
ii. Transport and travel
iii. ICT expenditure
iv. Medical expense
v. Utilities

The University has formulated and implemented robust financial reforms that have resulted in
reduction of operating expenses.

The reforms include, efficient and participatory budget formulation mechanisms, fiscal and
budgetary discipline, efficient payment and banking services, systems to stop revenue leakage,
wastage and optimize utilization of resources, review of financial viability of income generatang
units, re-engineering grants managemenl to effectively support resiarch, and 

-reforming
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procurement functions to maximize efficiency, increase transparency and accountability and

deliver value for money.

Operations and administrative expenditure has remained comparatively low due to increased use

of online platform where necessary. The university also continues to put in place financial
reforms which contributed to the reduction ofoperation expense.

c) Assets Base

The Campuses of the University are strategically located within the City of Nairobi and in the

Satellite locations. The University boasts of a well-developed state of the art physical
infrastructure which is organized into campuses that include the University Towers lecture halls
and o{Tices, teaching and research laboratories in Chiromo Campus, Lower and Upper Kabete
Campuses, and Faculty of Health Sciences, student amenities as well as sports and health
facilities.
Non-Current Assets have been maintained at Ksh. 207 billion.

ii. Current Strategic Direction
In order to address the above challenges, the University in its 2018-2023 Strategic Plan has

purposed to pursue the following strategic objectives;
I . To design and implement relevant and innovative teaching and learning programs.

2. To be a leading Institution in scholarly, research and creative productivity in Africa.
3. To improve student welfare services through development and implementation of

appropriate minimum standards.
4. To build a sustainable resource base.

5. To enhance the competitiveness and image ofthe University.
6. To institutionalize governance mechanisms and leadership culture that facilitates the

realization ofthe University's vision and mission.
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I O. ENVIRONMENTAL AIID SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING
The University of Nairobi is guided by its Service charter, the Act and rhe University statutes. In
dealing with its strategic direction. the University focused on five pillars that place the
customer/citizen first, delivery of relevant goods, products and services is next, and then
improving operational excellence is third. Below is a brief highlight of our achievements on each
pillar.

UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
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l. Sustainability strategy and profile

The university is in a perpetual quest for sustainability. For many years uoN was the only higher
education institution in Kenya, where its main focus was to meet the training needs of Nairobi,s
workforce. Later, it grew and developed specialist programs in sciences, applied sciences, social
sciences, technology, humanities and the arts.
UoN has an alumni network of 184,000 with politicians, cabinet ministers and heads of state
among them. The university claims strengths in the areas of teaching, research, development,
consultancy and professional excellence. It has also produced more trained graduates in human
resources than any other higher education institution in the country.
In order to survive, the University embraced its base as that of knowledge and wealth creation.
The knowledge industry is a multi-billion industry that highlights the need for communities to
enhance their level ofknowledge in the creation of wealth for sustainable development.
The role of the University of Nairobi, in embracing knowledge across county boundaries and
disciplines for the benefit of the nation has been guided by its 2018-2023 strategic plan, which
envisions the University working closely with different organizations to support initiatives aimed
at uplifting the standards of living by focusing on areas that create avenues for development. In
this regard, the university continually identifies and supports noble causes in the areas of
education, community development, the environment, health, safety and food security.

2. Environmental Performance

The university put into practice the commitment to environmental protection and sustainability by
planting over 7,000 tree seedlings to mark the Annual Tree Planting Day observed on l3 May
2022. This activity also drew the participation of the Loresho community and partners of the
University such as Equity croup Foundation, county covernment of Nairobi, the National
Govemment. Shamba cafe and Association of Green champions. Further, the research week and
Nairobi innovation week also captured environmental concems through themes, papers, and
projects that emphasized the importance of environmentally sustainable solutions.

3. Employee welfare

The recruitment of staff into the University of Nairobi is guided by the University of Nairobi
Recruitment Policy, the Public Service Commission Human Resource and procedures Manual.
Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) with the respective staff unions, and the Employment
Act. The University also observes gender parity and non-discrimination in the recruitment process
through adherence to the relevant policies and advertisements for vacancies.
University policies on employees take into account the views of key stakeholders including the
Ministry of Education, Ministry of Labour, Salaries and Remuneration commission, the Kenya
Federation of Employers (FKE) and the three staff Unions representing the interests of university
employees. The management has always consulted staff directly for feedback and sensitizations
on various actions including policy development. The University human resource policies are
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reviewed every five years or as is deemed appropriate to make them relevant to the prevailing
employment environment. During the year under review, the University introduced two policies
on employee welfare namely Workplace Policy on Gender-Based Violence and Policy on Gender
and Development 2022.
The Training and De.velopment Policy coveJs staff development issues. career progressiorl and

training. The policy takes into account the schemes of service for the various cadres of staff and

also the CBAs with the respective unions. Staff who wish to advance in their careers are always
reminded to apply for support under the Staff Training and Development Fund (STDF). Those

undertaking their PhD programs in the University benefit from fee waivers. The University
further supports staff in their career development by granting study leave and paid leave to attend

conferences as well as opportunities for staff exchange with leading universities in the world.
Staff are continuously sensitized to enhance their knowledge and skills for career development
and progression. The Staff Performance Appraisal is conducted every year for all staff and is

implemented alongside the Sanction and Reward Framework. The University implements the
relevant provisions ofthe Occupational Safety and Health Act, 2007 (OSHA).

4. Market place practices

a) Responsiblecompetitionpractice
The University applies for and is allocated govemment-sponsored students by the KUCCPS under
the laid down procedures. Under the self-sponsored programme, the university has an elaborate
marketing plan that lays out comprehensive strategies for (including anti-corruption, fair
competition, responsible political involvement, and respect for competitors)
b) Responsible supply chain and supplier relations
The University supply chain operations are streamlined to prevent undesirable conduct from
intemal and external sources. Some of the measures that were implemented to achieve best
practices in supply chain operations were as follows: l)Transparency of operations through open

competitive bidding, uploading of procurement opportunities on the UON website and public
procurement information portal and use ofthe Electronic Procurement Management Information
System (EPMIS;2) a supplier rotation policy to cover a wide supplier base;3) minimizing bid
rigging vices; 4) use of generic specifications rather than brand names; 5) observing reasonable
timelines in the procurement of goods and services; and 6)conducting regular market surveys so

that the award oftenders is in line with prevailing market conditions.
The University policy on payment of suppliers is based on the first in, first out principle with a

commitment to pay within sixty days subject to the successful delivery and acceptance of
goods/services. The procurement of goods and services by any department in the University is
strictly tied to the availability of funds and confirmation of the same by the Finance Department.
In case of a delay in paying suppliers due to unavoidable circumstances resulting to pending bills,
these become the first charge before undertaking new procurement obligations.
c) Responsible marketing and advertisement
The University of Nairobi Marketing Plan (2018-2023) contains comprehensive strategies for
marketing and advertising to achieve the objectives of enhancing visibility and brand awareness,
increasing the number of students applying to join the university, and enhancing customer
experience. The plan outlines the nature of academic programs to be marketed, to whom, the
avenues to use for marketing and advertising, and how the planned activities will be financed.
The marketing plan is also aimed at ensuring that the marketing of academic programs is aligned
to lhe draft policy on marketing, other university policies, and provisions by extemal regulators
such as the Commission for University Education (Standards and Guidelines) among others.

d) Product stewardship
The rights and interests of consumers are safeguarded by providing accurate, comprehensive, and
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A Free Medical camp was held during the university Annual Sports Day conducted on l4-15
october 2022 and also a l6 Days of Activism against gender based violence (woswA) targeting
children was held at the Lower Kabete Rehabilitation centre on December z02z As u *ay to
assist the needy students a Compassion Day was held on 7 December 2022 to mobilize r".oric",
to suppo( needy students.

easily available information about all the University programs and the use of open
communication channels online or in person in the event that more information is required.

5. CommunityEngagements

The University, through ihe College of Education and External Studies organized a community
outreach activity at the Kinoo Primary and Secondary school in Kiimbu county. The
collaboration involved the University of Nairobi Alumni Association, the Brookhouse School.
Primehold Supplies
The initiative was part of the Universities efforts to empower the youth to thrive, A CSR activity
coordinated by the two schools ofeducation ofthe university. During the activity, sanitary towels,
story books, novels and balls for various ball games.
Part of the initiative is to emphasis digital wellness. The idea is that all work and not play is
unhealthy, therefore even while seeking to encourage student to join university, the university has
the onus to encourage youth to engage in other curricular activities to cuitivate their taients,
balance and competence.

Corporate Social Responsibility
corporate Social Responsibility (csR) was an important component of the activities of the
University during the year under review. The Directorate of Corporate Affairs oversaw the
implementation of cSR activities by students and staff of the University in conjunction with
partners. A free medical camp was held to commemorate Annual Mental Health Awareness Day
under the theme "Making mental health and well-being for all a global priority." on 7 october
2022- The uoN held a Tree Planting Day on Novemb er 2022 during *hich t I,000 rrees were
planted with the support of partners including: ewetu student residences, platinum credit
Limited, Heard ofGreen, Kenya Forest Service (KFS), Kenya Forest Research Institute (KEFRI),
National Environmental Management Authority of Kenya (NEMA), and primary Schools
neighboring the Upper Kabete campus.

xrviii



LINIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
Annual Report and Financial Statements for lhe l'inancial Year ended 3Ah June 202J

I I. REPORT OF THE UMVERSITY COUNCIL
The University Council submits its rcport together with the financial statements for the year ended

30 June 2023, which show the state ofthe University's affairs.
Core business oftbe University ofNairobi .

The Core busines of the University is provided for in the Universities Act, 2012. Thc functions
and objects ofthe University arc:

a. To provide directly or in collaboration with other institulions of higher leaming, facilities
for University education, including technological and professional, education and for
research;

b. To participate in the discovery, transmission and preservation of knowledge and to
stimulate the intellectual life and cultural development of Kenya;

c. To conduct examinations for and to grant such academic awards as may be provided for in
statutes;

d. Subject to the Universities Act, to cooperate with the Government in planned development
of university education and, in panicular, to examine and approve proposals for new
faculties, new departments, new degree courses, or new subjects ofstudy submined to it by
any conslituent college or other post-secondary institution; and

e. To determine who may teach and what may be taught and how it may bc taught in the
University.

R€3ults
The results for the year ended 30 June, 2023 are set out on pages I to 37.
Council Members
The members ofthe University Council who served during the year are shown on page viii.
DividcnddSurplus remission
In accordance with Section 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations,
regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus funds
reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year. The University
made a deficit duringtheyear 2072n023 and hence no reminance to the Consolidatcd Fund.
Auditors
The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the University of Nairobi in
accordance with Articl€ 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 201 5.

By Order ofthe Universiry Council

EN G. KIAMA,
BvM, MSC(Nbi), PhD(Bern)KNAS
Vice Chencellor & Secrctery to Council
26 January 2024
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12. STATEMENT OF COUNCIL MEMBERS' RESPONSIBILITIf,S
Section 8l of The Public Finance Management Act 2012 require the directors to prepare
quarterly financial sEqement in respect of the entity, which give a true and fair view of the
state of afFairs of the entity at the end of the financial period and the operating rcsult of that
entity for that period. The directors are also requircd to ensure that the entity keeps proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the
entity. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthc entity.
The dircctors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the entity,s financial
statements, which give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity for and as at the
end ofthe financial period ended 30 June 2023. This rcsponsibility includes:

. Maintaining adequate financial management arralgements and ensuring that these
continue to be effective throughout the reporting period.

. Maintaining proper accounting records which disclosc with reasonablc accuracy at any
timc, the financial position ofthe entity.

o Designing, implementing, and maintaining intemal conttols relevsnt to the preparation
and fair prcsentation of the financial statement and ensuring that they arc free from
material misstatements, whether due to enor or fraud.

o Safeguarding the assets ofthe entity.
. Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies.
. Making accounting cstimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The dircctors accept responsibility for the entity's financial statement, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by rcasonable and prudenl
judgments and estimstes in conformity with lntcmational public Scctor Accounting
Standsrds (IPSAS), and in the manner rcquired by PFM Act 2012 and th€ Universities Acr
No. 42 of20l2. The directors are ofthe opinion that the cntity's financial sEtements give a
true and fair view of the state of the entity's transactions during the financial period, and of
the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2023. The directors further confirm the
completeness ofthe accounting rccords maintained for the entity which have been relied upon
in the preparation of the entity's financial slatement as well as the adequacy of the systems of
intemal fi nancial control.
Nothing has come to the attention of the council to indicate that the entity will not remain a
going concem for at least the next l2 months from the date ofthis statement.
Approval of th€ financiil strtements
The University ofNairobi financial statement were approved by the council on
and signed on its behalfby: lAr January 2024

a.
\-

P PHEN G. KIAMA,
BVM, MSC(NbD, PhD(Bcrn)KNAS
Vicc Ch.nccllor & Secrctrry to Council
26 Jrouery 2024
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Cheirmrn ofCouncil
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

li n lru nc i n g,.l c u tu n t t h i I i t.r'

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box ,ooE4-ooloo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDTTOR-GENERAL ON UNIVERSIW OF NAIROBI FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and aceountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide intemal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governanc€ systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Ac|2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of University of Nairobi set out on
pages 1 to 41 , which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023,
and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets,
statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for

Reporl oflhe Audilor-General on University ofNairobi for the year ended 30 June,2023



othe year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the University of Nairobi as at 30 June, 2023 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Universities Act,20'12 and the Public Finance ManagementAcl,2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Un-Accounted for Rental Revenue

The statement of financial performance reflects rental income amounting to
Kshs.243,718,706. The amount includes rent from facilities totalling Kshs.87,581,186 as
disclosed in Note I to the financial statements. Review of records and physical verification
carried out on 4 December,2023 revealed that a property on Gatundu Road Kileleshwa
was rented out to a Car Dealer. However, the lease agreement was not provided and the
revenue from the property has not been disclosed.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the incomes from rental facilities
amounting to Kshs.87,581,186 could not be confirmed.

2. Anomalies in the Collection of Fees from Students

The statement of financial performance reflects tuition fees and other related charges
amounting to Kshs.4,323,093,673 as further disclosed in Note 7 to the financial
statements. Review of records revealed that eight hundred and forty-four (&M) students
with previous year outstanding balances amounting to Kshs.80,990,019 were invoiced
before clearing their fees arrears. This was contrary to the Fees Policy which requires a
student to clear fees balance five (5) weeks before the start of a new semester or within
l3weeks in case of installments.

Further, receipt data from the Student Management lnformation System (SMIS) for
financial year 202212023 revealed two thousand eight hundred and eighty-eight (2,888)
gaps in the receipt number sequence in the system generated reports.

ln addition, invoice data from the SMIS for the financial yeat 202212023 for Module I and
ll students revealed several gaps in the invoice lD.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of tuition fees and other related
charges amounting to Kshs.4,323,093,673 could not be confirmed.

3. Unsupported Work in Progress

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment amounting to
Kshs.207,153,'149,310. The amount includes work in progress totalling Kshs.222,396,577
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as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statementq. However, the work in progress was
not supported by list of projects, interim certificates and the projects implementation status
report.

Further, work in progress on buildings amounting to Kshs.20,272,854 was capitalized in
the year under review. However, certificates of practical completion and journal entries in
the support of the capitalization were not provided.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the work in progress amounting
to Kshs.222,396,577 could not be confirmed.

4. Long Outstanding Receivabtes

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
amounting to Kshs.1,921 ,478,514 as further disclosed in Note 27 lo the financial
statements. The amount includes student debtors totalling Kshs.1,020,374,928 which
have remained outstanding for more than 3 years, out of which student debtors amounting
to Kshs.112,147,674 dates back to '1988 academic year. Management has not made any
efforts to recover the long outstanding debts.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and recoverability of receivables from exchange
transactions amounting to of Kshs.1,020,374,928 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the University of Nairobi Management in
accordance with ISSAI 1 30 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audit of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Material Uncertainty in Relation to Sustainability of Services

The statement of financial position reflects current assets totalling Kshs.5,306,494,796
against current liabilities totalling Kshs.14,735,207,374 resulting in a negative working
capital amounting to Kshs.9,428,7 12,57 8.

ln the circumstance, the University is technically insolvent and may not be able to meet
its current obligations as and when they fall due.

2. Loss Making lncome Generating Units

The statement of financial performance reflects University of Nairobi (UON) subsidiaries
income amounting to Kshs.871,162,419. The amount includes revenue from lncome
Generating Units (lGUs') held by University of Nairobi Enterprises and Services Limited
(UNES) totalling Kshs.77,595,419 as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.
However, the lncome Generating Units (lGUs) continued to make losses in the year under
review as shown below:

Report of the Auditor-General on Univercity o/ Nairobi for the year ended 30 June,202i
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IGU
Receipts
(Kshs)

Deficit
Kshs.

Faculty of Arts and Social Sciences 214,856 2,829,870 (2,615,014)

Faculty of Health Science 1,776,0754 37,156,392 (19,395,639)
Faculty of Science and Technoloqy 6,964,987 11,064,651 (4,099,664)
Diagnostic Radiology 2,704,300 2,787,690 (83,390)
Eye Centre 5,919,860 6,710,933 (791,073)

Expenditure
Kshs

Management has not explained measures that are being put in place to reverse the trend
and ensure sustainability of the lncome Generating Units (lGUs).

My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit mafters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Audit Matters

ln the audit report of 202112022 financial year, several issues were raised under the
Report on Financial Statements, Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources, and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance which have remained unresolved.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. lrregularities in Compensation of Employees

1,1 Lack of Approved Organisation Structure and Staff Establishment

The statement of financial performance reflects employee cost amounting to
Kshs.9,015,969,238. Review of records revealed that the University has three thousand
nine hundred and thi,Iy (3930) employees. However, the approved operating organisation
structure, staff establishment and grading structures were not provided for audit.
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'1.2 Non-Adherence to the One-Third Basic Salary Rule

Review of payroll revealed that several employees were paid net salaries that were less
than a third (1/3) of their basic pay. This was contrary to Section 19(3) of the Employment
Act, 2007 which states that the total amount of all deductions which may be made by an
employer from the wages of his employee at any one time shall not exceed two thirds of
such wages or such additional or other amount as may be prescribed by the Minister.

1.3 lrregular Payment of Acting Allowances

Review of records revealed that twenty-one (21) employees were paid acting allowances
amounting to Kshs.7,034,470 during the financial year under review. The amount includes
acting allowances totalling Kshs.3,593,221 paid for extended periods of more than six (6)
months. This was contrary to Section C.14 (1) of the Public Service Commission Human
Resource Policies and Procedures Manual forthe Public Servic,e, May 2016 which states
that when an officer is eligible for appointment to a higher post and is called upon to act
in that post pending advertisement of the post, he/she is eligible for payment of acting
allowance at the rate of twenty percent (20%) of his substantive basic salary. Acting
allowancc will not be payable to an officer for more than six (6) months.

Further, eight (8) officers were appointed to act and perform duties of posts that were
more than two (2) grades higher than the officer's substantive grade. This was contrary
to Section C.15 (3) of the Public Service Commission Human Resource Policies and
Procedures Manual for the Public Service, May 2016 which states that officers shall not
be called upon to perform duties of a post that is more than two (2) grades higher than
the ofiicer's substantive grade.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Overpricing of the Proposed Renovation Work at Vet Anatomy and Physiology
Building

Review of records revealed that the contract for renovation works to the Vet Anatomy and
Physiology Building was awarded at a cost of Kshs.4,134,500. The contractor had been
paid Kshs.2,149,576 to-date. However, physical verification of the building revealed that
tiles laid in room 151,152,153 and along the corridors have loosened due to poor
workmanship. Further, high window grills included in the bills of quantities had not been
installed.

ln addition, the contract price amounting to Kshs.4,134,500 was higher that the engineer's
estimate of Kshs.3,357,220.

ln the circumslances, value for money may not be obtained if the project is not completed
and put to the intended use.

3. lrregular Splitting of Tenders

Review of records revealed that the University procured furniture and equipment,
computers and motor vehicles at a cost of Kshs.115,647,100, Kshs.94,145,859 and
Kshs.39,667,728, respectively, using request for quotations method of procurement.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on University ofNairobi for the year ended 30 June,2023

5



However, the procurement of each item was split and procured under different faculties
to avoid open teridering. This was contrary to Regulation 43(1) of the Public Procurerhent
and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2020 which provides that a procuring entity shall not
split or structure its contracts for the purpose of avoiding the use of a procurement
procedure.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. lrregularities in the Disposal of Assets

Review of documents revealed that the University disposed motor vehicles, ICT
equipment and furniture and fittings amounting to Kshs.85,971 ,557. However, the Heads
of the User Departments did not submit the Disposal Plans to the Head of Procurement
for consolidation. This was contrary to Section 163 of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015 which provides that an Accounting Officer shall establish a disposal
committee as and when prescribed for the purpose of disposal of unserviceable, obsolete,
obsolescent, or surplus stores, equipment or assets.

Further, the Disposal Committee was appointed after the approval of the Disposal Plan
on 11 August, 2022.

ln addition, receipt vouchers in support of assets disposal income amounting to
Kshs.76,648,657 were not provided.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

5. lrregular Leasing of Land

Review of records revealed that the University leased a portion of land at Spring Valley
to a Telecommunication Company to erect a communication booster. However, the lease
agreement and the Council minutes authorizing the lease were not provided. This was
contrary to Regulation 132(1) of the Public Finance Management Regulations, 2015
which provides that an Accounting Officer of a government entity take full responsibility
and ensure that proper control systems exist for assets and that preventative mechanisms
are in place to eliminate theft, security threats, losses, wastage and misuse, and that
movement and conditions of assets can be tracked.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

6. Stalled Student Accommodation Hostels at Lower Kabete Campus

As previously reported, the construction of a students' accommodation hostel comprising
500 bed hostels, kitchen and dining, and a common room at Lower Kabete Campus
undertaken by a contractor in 1990 stalled in 1992 after the Government budgetary
allocation ceased. The initial contract was mutually terminated in year 2000. At the time,
the University owed the contractor an amount of Kshs.70,000,000 which was paid in the
Month of July, 2022lhrough budgetary support from The National Treasury. Although the
Management indicated that they had requested for funding amounting to
Kshs.450,000,000 to finance completion of'the stalled project, physical inspection of the
project in November, 2023 revealed that the building is deteriorating due to roof leakages,
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termites, visible cracks in the columns and beams, chemical and physical damage on the
stalled building.

ln the circumstances, value for money on the expenditure incurred so far on the project
may not be realized.

7. Unutilized School of Pharmacy

As previously reported, on 1 October, 2010, the University entered into a contract for the
construction of the proposed School of Pharmacy Building at the College of Health
Services at a cost of Kshs.152,903,393. The project period was set for ninety-seven (97)
weeks with the expected completion date set in August, 2012. Construction had been
carried out on the basement, ground and first floors and the building was 90% complete.
However, the building could not be occupied as the sewerage system had not been
connected due to lack of an appropriate way-leave. The Management explained that the
sewer has since been connected to the Nairobi County's main sewer line following
agreement with the Nairobi Hospice Management to have it pass through their plot.

Although, the project Architect gave a certificate of practical completion in 2017 for the
works awarded and successfully completed, the building has not been occupied.

ln the circumstances, value for money on Kshs.152,903,393 incurred on the project may
not be realized if it is not put to the intended use.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the PublicAuditAct,20l5, based on the procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Effectiveness
of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my report, I confirm
that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls,
risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Failure to Update the Fixed Assets Register

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment amounting to
Kshs.207,153,149,310. However, five (5) motorcycles, f(ve (5) tractors, twentythree (23)
motor vehicles, and eight (8) parcels of land and a building have not been recorded in the
fixed assets register.
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ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of the fixed assets management systems
employed by the University could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
effective processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall
governance, were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements which are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the University or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public
Audit Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
complies with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are applied
in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with

' Article 229(7\1 of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
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I
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic Cecisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7('l)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) o't the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
University policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCP v , cBs
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

19 April,2024

a

a

1 \L
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14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSMON AS AT 30 JI'NE 2023

Notcr
ASSETS
Currcrt Asct!

Cah snd Clsb Equivalcnb
Short Tc{m Depocife
Rcccivrblcs from non-cxchangc Tramactions
Rcccivrblcs from Exchange Transactions
Invcntorics

2021n022
K!h.

No!-C[rrcst Alrats
Prop.rty, Pl8nt md Equipmcnt
InYcltElc0ts
Inhgiblc A$cb
Furdr Hcld by tjNES Ltd

Tot l Atr.tt
Lhbll&lct
Crl].rt L&buld..

Tradc ard Odrcr Peyeblcs
Strtutory P.yrblcs
Cuna hovLiora

Non-Crrrrra lJ.bllltkr
Barclays Bu* Tcrm l,oan
l.rNES trd long t€rm Lilbilitid
Spccisl Account! Erd Grmle
Trust rrd Eodowrnq[ trrrds
En&*urnt for Gcncral Purposcs

Tonl Lbbllitlct
I{ct r'trar

Gcncnl Fuad
Nct ftl[dr from IGUS & t NES
Capi[l Rcscrvcs
Rcvanc Rcscrvcs

Totd Nd ArEGt!

Tot l Nd At3.tr rld Llrbllltics

P
BvM, MSC(NbD, PtD(B.r!)KNAS
VLc Ct[callo] & S..r!t.ry to Courcll
26 J.nr.ry 2024

B. Coo, MBA (IbbU), CPA(K)
ICPAK Mcrb.r Ne. 7l2t
A& Dlr*tor Florlcr
26 Jr.srry 202a

r,44r,751J80
425,912

I,422,801,765
2.060,863,93 t

5,t70r1tJ}]

207,s02,367,26t
17,552,005
8,6,12,690

247
201;t152c,,t$
2l2ttl6,12l,arz

2,452,W2,@4
t0,566,,626,'r79

767

l3JrsrrTJ3s

633,333,332
269,0r'.t,2U

2,070,756,72t
52421,471

338

3,041,741,154

16,063,746,013
(7 ,502,159)

It9,65l,t 13,705

rt6,l I t,693,00:t
2t2t14a2t,1v2

BA(NUT MA(NLL PID(U
Cldr-[ .f Co.lcll
16 Jrurry 20la

u
25
26
27
2t

29
30
3t
12

!3
3,i
35

36
37
3t
39
40

/al

o
43
11

Thc finrncial statcrncnB s.l out on patcs I to 7 wcrc signcd on bchalfoftlrc Board of Dircctors by:

EN G. XIAMA, A STEPHEN K. KIMELI, A WE

2ll .:: r



UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
Arurual Report and Financial Statements for tlw Finarciol Year ended 3N Jwe 2023

16. STATEMENT OF CEANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JI]}IE 2023

Notc IGU'S rnd Gcnenl Fund Spccirl Crpitel Resene
UNES Funds Ctpitrl

Developm.nt
Fund

Kshs Klhs Kshs Kshs

Revenue
Rcscrvc

Kshs

Totrl

Kshs

Additional Grsnts Assets
DeF€ciation on Donatcd Assas
Depreciation on Research Grants Assets
Incrcaser'(Decrease) in IGU Fund

UNES Reserves
lncrcaser'(Decrcase) in Revaluation
IncremantaV (Decremented) De?reciation on Buildings
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

hior Year adjustmens

4t
4l
4l
42
42
43
43
44
u
44

50,68/,972
(23,434,s7s)
(24,5t9,606)

204,700,000
(102,408,180) 102,408,180

(2,t03,463,9s4)
(59,752,875)

50,684,972
(23A34,s7s)
(?4,s19,606)

38,186,286
(49,484,643)
204,700,000

(2,103,463,9s4)
(59,7s2,875)

. (25,3782E3)

38,186,286
(49,484,643)

Reco ition of fure (25,378,283)

Additional Grants Asscts
Depr€ciation on Donatcd Assas
Depreciation on Research Grants Asses
Funds from IGUs
UNES Reserves
Incrementsy (Decremented) Depreciation on Buildings
lnvestm€nt In Subsidisries
Prior Year Adjustmutts

4t
4t
42
42
42
43
44
44
44

l6l,696,571
(23,434,57s')
(3e,s60,794)

(781,502,159)
(69,193,165)

102,408,180
(3,909,49s)

(28,006,2s0)

l6l,696,571
(23,434,s7s)
(39,560,794)

(69,r93,r65)
(388,910)

(3,909,4e5)
(28,006,250)

781,502,159

(102,797,090)

for the 893

N/B: The IGU's and UNES ftrnds were reclassified during the year under rcview from statement ofposition to statement of performancc in accordance to
IPSAS 9 on recognition ofrcvenue.

893
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17. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JT]NE 2023

Notes

202tn022
Ksh.

Cash FIow from Operatlng ectlvities
Cash from non-cxchange transaction

Cash from exchange transaction

Extemal Reseaxch Grants Receipts

Decrease in Debtors

Totrl Rcceipts from Erchrnge end non-ercbange tnnsrctions

Paymens of Expenditurcs

Extemal Research Grants Expenses

Increase in Pending bills
(lncrease/ Decrease in lnventory

Total Pryments from Erchange rnd non-exchrnge trrnssctions
Total Crsh Flows from Opcretlng rctivitics
Crsh Flow From Invcating Activlties

Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and Equipment
Other GainV(Loss )
(Decrcase/lncrease in Investment & l,ong-Term Liabilities

Total Crsh Flows from Investing sctivities
Crsh flows from finrncing .ctivities

Repayment of borrowings
Dividends Reccived

Increase in capital funds

Total Crsh Flows from Finrncing .ctivities
Nct Cesh Flows

Crsh Brlrnce I l[ly 2022

Crsb Brlance 30 June 2023

Anelysis of Crsh rnd Cesh Equivrlents
Cash in Hand and at Bank 30 June 2023

Short Term Deposits

Crsh and Crsh Equivalcnts as rt 30 June 2023

6

7-t2
38

26-27

5,724,440 294
4,431,|2,773
4,099,144,7 I I

16,055,005

t4270,752,784

(l l,590,568,427)
(4,r74,906,41 l)

2,097,407,998

35,886,449

(13,632,r80J90)

638,572394

(228,891,03s)

18,223,350

(4,2s7,722)

I,314,310

(213,6tt,097)

(r05,555,556)

73,103

(236,119,481)

(341,601,93t

83Js9363

I,35E,818,029

t142,177392

I,441,75t,480
425,9t2

1,442,t77,392

t3-22

3E

33-3s

28

29

23

23

30&32

36

4144

24

25

4ll'l!e
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I8. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.IUNE 2023

Originel Adjustments Final Budget Acattrl on Performrnce
Budget (2022n023\ Comperable Dilfercnce

Q022no2,3'
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Revenue
lnternalll Generated Acadernic Revenue
Governm!'nt Crants - Recurrent
(iovernment Crants - Dcvelopmcnt
Development Grants (Devpt Partners)
l-lxternal Reseorch (lrants

Other lncomes Recunent (l(iUs. Agenct lees. Press. Rcntals )

o/o oJ
Utllizs tlon

Kshs

5.787.529.207
6.298.000.000
l.l-.r7.619.951

2.852.720.000
685.1 I 1.851

(24,586,41E)
(687,032,640)

(t,227,629,954)
550,000,000

1,943,422,5t5
(5,499,952\

5,762,942,789
5,610,967,360

t 0,000,000
550,000,000

4,796,t 42,51 5

679,6n,90t

,1.12i.09i.673
5.6 | 0.967.159

15.000.000

4..r26.090
0.619.1 l8

(t.139.819. 6)
(l)

5.000.000
( 5 s0.000.000)
(i r.7 r6.125 )

r .l l .01 7.217
1.7 6

82

7sYo

l00o/o
l50o/o

0o/o

99o/o

l2lo/o

Total Revenue 16,860,991,0t 4 548.673551 17,409,66456s ls534,u6r5l (t,875.54EJ l4) 890/"

Erpenses
Personnel Emolume nts
[)irect Servicc Providers(DSP) Module II
Other Recurrent [ixpenses - lGLls
[]oards Expenses
Operating/ Adrninistrative []\penses
ll\ternal Rescarch Crants
Iluildings & Plant Repairs and Maintcnance
I"inance charges

9.810.076. t.11

700.156.?00
87.901 ..15 6

10.000.000
I .9 t 2.017.714
2.124.8 t2.000

q I .000.000
77.634.601

9.015.969.t18
743.89 t .il8
t56.5{i5.871

6.21t.1 56
I .316.426.371
1.{t]2.5]6.:0i

r9.q5 2.190
70.759.2 t 5

582.t11.059

(r 77,356,048)
108,t 18,r 89
82,098,5,14

(236,t35,892'
1,639,530,986
(15,600,000)
(2,596,018)

9,662,720,095
808,574,389
170,000,000
30,000,000

I ,67 5 ,901 ,842
4,064,342,9E6

75300,000
75,038,583

616.750.li57
64.68i.060
l 1.1 I 1.1 27
I i.75 8.81.1

i29 .47 5 .1',7 I

(?68.191.1 I 7)
15.447.6 t0

'1.2 79.168
(582.22r.059)

93o/"
92o/o

92o/o

2lo/o
80o/o

n9%
660/o

94o/o

0o/oI)epr!'ciat ion
rs,r63,9r&134 1J98,059,760 16,56t977,894 16,804,582,832 (242,604,93E) toto/"

r,697,072,E80 (849386,209) 847,686,671 (1170,466,58r) (1,632 ,9$37n -1500/"

Capital Erpenditu re
ABSA Loan tiacility
Purchase of Moror Vehicles
I'urchase of Plant and l:quipment
Capitirl Developmcnt-WIP
Purchase of Computers

t05.555.555
6.i65.1 20

55.1r 7.565
I .279. 129.954

250.80.1.686

105,555,555 r0s.sss.s56 (l) r00%
0o/o

45o/o

0o/o

62Yo

20(6,36s,1 )
0

(692,629,954)
( r 50,39 t,136)

55217,565
586,500,000
r 00,413,550

?5.015.18{

62.718.712

i0.102.1 8 I

586.500.000
37.661.818

1,697.072,880 (849386109) li/7,686,671 I93,119,672 654,J66,ee9 23o/o

5



UNIVERSII'Y OF NAIROBI
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial year ended 3At,June 2023

l. Commentary on Significant Underutilization and Overutilization

Expenses
Actual total expenditure was above the targel for the period ended 30 June 2023 by lo/o
due to the following:
i. Operating Expenses

The operating and administrative expenses budget was underutilized by 20% due to
fund constraints for operations and scaling down on non-essential activities.

ii, Expenditure on External Research Grants
The expenditure on extemal research grants was over utilized by l90% which is
following the absorption policy for research funds that were above the budget. The
project expenditure depends on the funding by the donor and the work plan as per the
singed MOUs and donor budget.

iii. Boerd Expenses
council expense was underutilized by 79% which was attribuled to various cost cufiing
measures that were implemenled during the year due lo constraints of funds.

iv. CapitalExpenditure
Capital expenditure was underutilized by 77%o due to lhe lack of remittance of capital
development funds from the govemment and adequate A.l.A funds to finance capital
expenses during the year. Purchase of equipment, capital development and purchase of
computers all fell below the budgetby 55yo,100% and 38% respectively.

2. Explanation ofChanges between Original and Final Budget

Revenue
l. Intemally generated academic revenue was adjusted downwards due to decrease in the

projected revenue owing to a drop in module II student registration. The University
received less number ofnew Module II students than anticipated.

2. Govemment Grants for recurrent capitation was rationalized in accordance with the
Ministry of Education Science and Technology approved budget.

3. Grants from development partners were rationalized in accordance with the Ministry of
Education Science and Technology approved budget.

4. External Research crants were revised upwards to accommodate the newly signed M.o.Us
received during the year.

5. Budget for other incomes were revised downwards in anticipation of lower retums due to
low activity on campus during the recess period.

Expenditure
l. Personnel cost budget was adjusted downward to accommodate the people reform agenda

implementation.
2. The budget for direct service providers (DSP) was adjusted to match the anticipated

expense in accordance to the DSP policy manual.
3. Budget relating to recurrent IGUs expense was revised to accommodate the increased

activities during the year.
4. operating expense budget were revised downwards due to constrain in cash flow available

to run the day-to-day activities.
5. External research grants budget was rationalized to accommodate the signed M.O.Us

during the year.
6. The budget for buildings, plant and machinery were revised downwards due to constrain in

cash flow available to run the day-to-day activities.
7. The budget for work plan expenses were revised downwards due to constrain in cash flow

6l l' ., -.
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available to run the day+oday activities.
8. Capital expense budgets was revised downwards due to constrain in cash flow available

for capital development.

,3. Reconciliation of the Statement of Compgrison of Budget and Actual Anoutrt and

the Statement of Financial Performance

Note 2021n022

Ksh.

10,155,553,067

4 ,099 ,t 44,7 I I

128,390,066

4227 ,534,777

14J83,087,844

12272,982,650

4,17 4,906,41 I

85,20t,892

105,555,556

20,712,000

45,708,000

4,432,083,859

l 6,70s,066,509

Revenue

Total Revenue as per Statement of Financial Performance

Less: Income from Subsidiaries

ADD Revenues accounted for under Funds

External Research Grants Receipts

Faculty Based IGA -lncomes

Total Rev€nu€ as per Strtement of Comparison of
Budg€t .rtd Actu.l Amount
Etpenses

Total Expenses as per Statement ofFinancial Performance

Less: Expenses from Subsidiaries

ADD Development Expenditure

Extemal Research Grants Expenses

Faculty Based IGA -Expenses

ABSA Loan Facility

Puchase of Plant and Equipment

Purchase of Computers

Totrl Erp€ndlture rs per Ststement ofComparison of
Budget rnd Actual Amount

6-t2

ll

38

42

t3-22

2t

38

42

36

46

46

711,x{c
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I9. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l. General Information

The University of Nairobi is established by and derives its authority and accountability from the
Universities Act 2012. The University is wholly owned by the covernment of Kenya and is
domiciled in Kenya. The University's principal activity is to provide University Education and
training in addition to participation in discovery, transmission and preservation of knowledge.

ln the FY202112022 the University restructured its operations which necessitated changes in
presentation of its flnancial statements. In compliance with the National Treasury structure, the
University adopted the reporting by nature of activities, a deviation from the previous
presentation on functional basis. The comparative year has been reclassified where prictically
possible to match the cunent structure.
2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and
financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and
actuarially determined liabilities and their present value. The preparation of financial statements
are in conformity with intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual basis
ofaccounting which allows the use of estimates and assumptions. lt also requires management to
exercise judgement in the process of applying the University of Nairobi's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity. or where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are appropriately disclosed.
The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings which is the
functional and reporting currency ofthe University of Nairobi rounded to the nearest Ksh.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Public Financial Managemenr
Act (PFM), the State Corporations Act, the University Act and the Intemational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual. The accounting policies adopted have been consistenlly
applied to all the years presented.
The cash flow statement is prepared using the direcl method.
3. Adoption ofNew and Revised Standards

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective
in the year ended 30 June 2023.

IPSAS 4r: Financial

Instruments

Applicable: l'r January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial reporting

of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful

information to users of financial statements for their assessment of lhe

amounts, timing and uncertainty ofan Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful information

than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash

flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

8ll'.r -.
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. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing;

and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the

hedging anangements in scope of the guidance. The model

develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management

strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as part

ofthe risk management strategy.

(This stondo does not ho)e an! eflecl on outrtnoncial slalemenl)

IPSAS 4z: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l" January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting Entity

provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The information

provided should help users of the financial statements and general-purpose

fi nancial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entily.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial

performance, financial position and cash flows.

(This standatd does nol hove anl ellecl on our findnciol slalement)

Amendments to Other

IPSAS resulting from

IPSAS 4r: Financial

Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4r was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 3o, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4r was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guaranteed contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4r was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classifying financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual

basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41

was issued.

(This standard does nol hove onf elJecl on outlinonciol slqtemenl)

Other improvements to Applicfile I't Janutry 2023

91 1, ., -!
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New and amended standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective in the year ended 30 June 2023,

iii. Early adoption of standards

The University did not early adopt any new or amended standards in year 2022/2023.

IPSAS o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Gouernment Sector. Amendments to refer to the latest System of
National Accounts (SNA 2oo8).

o /PSAS 39: Employee Benertb. Now deletes the term composite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IpSAS.

. IPSAS z9: Financial instruments: Recogrrition and
Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS

handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4r which is applicable

from 1st January 2o23.

(This stonda does not how on! elfecl on ourrtnanciql stotemenl)

lPsAs 43 Applicable Id lanuary 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition. measuremenr,

pres€ntation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and

lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those

transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial slatements to

assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial

performance and cash flows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

(This stondod does not hare ant'ellect on ourrtnancial slatement)

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable l't Jmuary 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at

the lower of carrying amounl and fair value less cosls to sell and the

depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separalely in the stalement of financial position and the results of discontinued

operations to be presented separately in the statement of financial performance.

(Thk standard does not haee any eflect on outfinancial slatement)

tol '., . .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

i. Changes in accounting policies and estimales

The University recognizes the effects of changes in'accounting policy retroSpectively. The eflects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.
Accounting policies are changed only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation or
otherwise provides more reliable and more relevant information. These accounting policies have
been applied consistently to all years presented in these financial statements.

When presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended or accounting
policies are changed voluntarily, comparative figures are restated to ensure consistency with the
current year unless it is impracticable to do so.

ii, Revenuerecognition
a. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions are mainly Government of Kenya grants for both the
recurrent and developmenl expenditure. Revenue is recognized when it becomes due and the
transfers are free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential
related to the asset will flow the University and can be measured reliably.

b. Revenue from exchange transactions
Students Fees
Income derived from rendering services includes fees from graduate and undergraduate programs,
mandatory students' fees, fees from accommodation and catering services.
Tuition revenue is recognized over the course of the semester for which it is earned, regardless of
when it is received.
Mandatory fees such as registration fees, Lab fees, Activity fees, UNSA fees and Computer fees
relate to services provided by the University over the Course of the semester and similar to
tuition, are recognized over the course of semester to which they apply.
Accommodation and Catering services Revenue is recognized during the year in which the
students reside on campus and make use ofcampus residences and dining facilities.

Students' Caution Monies are recognized as liability and separated under Current and Non-
Current portions in the Statement of Financial Position.

Sales and Services of related Enterprises

Sales and Services of related enterprises such as UNES Ltd and UoN Press are limited to
revenues directly from operations of the enterprises.
Sales and Services revenue is recognized when earned, that is, at the time goods or services are
provided.
Research Grants
Payments received in advance from sponsors of research projects are reported as deferred income
on the statement of financial position until such times as the revenue has been earned, which is
when the expense is incurred.
Interest income
Interest Income is recognized when earned using the applicable rate.

Dividends
Dividends or a similar distribution from subsidiary company such as UNES Ltd is recognized
when the University's right to receive paymenls is established.

I I I l' .r .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Cont'd
Rental income
Rental income arising from staff houses and other University premises are recognized when
earned arising from occupancy and on a pro rata basis.
Disposal Gains and Losses
Any gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized at the date the control
of the asset is passed on to the buyer and it is determined after deducting from the proceeds the
net book value ofthe asset at the time ofdisposal.
Revaluation gains and Su rpluses
Revaluation decreases are debited first against the revaluation surplus related to the same class of
assets and any excess against surplus or deficit. when the revalued asset is disposed of, the
revalualion surplus is transferred directly to accumulated surpluses or deficits.

iii. Taxes
The university is exempt from taxation under the pFM Act Regulation No.34, Section 2l9.This
reguJation requires corporations exempted from Income Tax to remit 90 percent of surplus to
the National Treasury.
iv. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost or revalued amount less cost of accumulated
depreciation at the end of the year. The valuation is carried out after every five years. valuation
was last done in the year 2016/2017 by registered, licensed and practicing valuers from the
Department ofReal Estate and Construction Management ofthe University of Nairobi.
Revaluation is carried out for land and buildings to reflect the service potential or economic
benefit obtained through control of the asset. Revaluation is based on the fair value of the asset.
with changes repo(ed by class of asset. Accumulated depreciation at revaluation date is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount so that the carrying amount after revaluation equals
the revalued amount. upon disposal of an asset, the gain or loss in disposal is calculated by
subtracting the net book value from the proceeds from sale of assels, where the net book value is
calculated by subtracting the accumulated depreciation ofthe asset from the cost. Such assets will
be derecognized from the books of accounts by removing the whole cost of purchase of the asset
and the accumulated depreciation.
Revaluation decreases are debited first against the revaluation surplus related to the same class of
assets and any excess against surplus or deficit. when the revalued asset is disposed off, the
revaluation surplus is transferred directly to accumulated surpluses or deficits.
Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis at rates calculated to allocate the cost or valuation
of item of property, plant, and equipment over its estimated useful life. The depreciation rate of
different classes ofproperty, plant, and equipment are as follows:

o Furniture and Equipment - l|Yo on straight line basis

o Motor Vehicles - 20Yo on straight line basis

. Academic gowns - 50lo on straight line basis

o Buildings - 2% on straight line basis

. Computers and software development - 33.3% on straight line basis

v. Leases

The University has entered into several operating leases with owners of premises for provision of
teaching spaces. Since these contracts do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased premises to the University, lease payments are recognized as
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an operating expense in the statemenl ofperformance on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

vi, Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separatefy are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is charged to the statement of performance
in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets

are amortized at 20o/o on a straight line basis.

vii. Research Grants
These are donor funds received for research purposes. The funds are accounted for in a separate

special fund account.

The Deans Committee Research Grants are funds set aside from University revenue. The
uncommifted balance on each research is canied forward until the related research project is
completed.

viii. Endowment and Trust Fund

Endowment and Trust Fund are funds set-up through special donations, the principal amount
being invested and the income accruing being applied to scholarships, academic research, and
academic chairs.
The responsibility for accepting, preserving, and managing the funds entrusted to the University
rests with the Council; however, the Council has delegated authority for investment decisions to
the Investment Committee of the University. The Committee determines investment objectives
and guidelines, including allocation ofassets between classes of investments.
The University's investment objective for its endowment assets is to maximize total retum within
reasonable risk parameters. The achievement of favorable investment retums enables the
University to distribute increasing amounts from the endowment over time so that present and
future needs can be treated equitably. Diversification is a key component ofthe University's
Standard for managing and investing endowment funds, and asset allocation targets are subject to
ongoing reviews by the Investment Committee.
lnvestments are stated at market value in accordance with performance of securities in market and

advice from relevant professionals.

ix. Financialinstruments

Financial assets and Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
The University recognizes Receivables on the date when they are originaled and derecognizes a
financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows ofthe asset expire.
The University derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.

Financial assets

Receivables
These assets are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly anributable transaction costs
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are measured at amortized cost.
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Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the University assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired
when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss has occuned after the initial recognition Lf the
asset and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset that c;n be

Eslimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets including equity securities are
impaired can include:

o The debtors or an entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty
o Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

. The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

o observable dara indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g.
changes in anears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Short-term deposits
short-term deposits are made for varying periods depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the University. lnterest rates are negotiated with the financial institutions to fetch the
University the best available returns in the market. Interest earned thereof are recognized in the
statement of fi nancial performance.
Financial Iiabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of TPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities ar fair value
through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The University determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings, plus directly aftributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowing
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
am-ortized cost using the effective interest method. Cains and losses are recognized in surplus or
deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method
amortization process.

x. Inventory Valuation
lnventories are measured at the lower cost and net realizable value.
The cost of Library books is written off to expenditure as incurred. cost of work in progress and
finished goods includes raw materials and direcl labor costs.

xi. Employee benefits
Retirement Benefits
The University currently operates a defined contribution scheme for its employees.
The University obligation to the scheme is the contribution of 20o/o of basic Salary whereas the
employees contribute l0% of their basic Salary. The University also contributed t; NSSF Kshs.
1,080 per employee per month for the year under review starting January 2023. The University's
contributions to the above schemes are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance in ihe
year to which they relate.
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xii. Foreign Currency Conversion
Assets and Liabilities in foreign currencies are converted into Kenya shillings at the rates of
gxchange ruling at the $tatement of Financial Position date. Conversion differences are accouqted
for in the appropriate fund accounts.

xiii. Provisions

Bad Debt Provision
Provision for bad debt has been made at 5%o on sundry and student debtors which include sundry
receivables and receivables arising from non+xchange transactions such as from GoK and other
Public Institutions. In the year 202212023 the University management started to provide for bad

debts on student debtors at 57o.

Other liabilities and provisions

Other liabilities and provisions are recognized for future expenditure of uncertain amount or
timing. When there is a present obligation as a result ofa past event and it is probable that an

outflow of future economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made ofthe amount ofthe obligation.
Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the Financial Statements at the point at which the
contingency is evident. Contingent liabilities are disclosed if the possibility that they will
crystallize is not remote.
Current employee obligations

Employee benefits expected to be settled within l2 months are measured at nominal values based

on accrued entitlements at currenl rates of pay.

These are accrued gratuities earned but not yet paid for staffon contractual terms of employment.
Non-Current employee obligations

Employee benefits expected to be settled beyond l2 months are measured at nominal values
based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.

These are accrued gratuities earned but not yet paid for staffon contractual terms of employment

Employee benefits are calculated at thirty one percent of the basic pay for staff on contract and

twenty seven days basic pay per year worked for members ofstaffon auxiliary grades.

xiv. Nature and purpose of reserves

The University creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. The following
reserves are maintained U niversity:
IGU'S and UNES Funds
The IGU's and UNES Fund are created out ofrevenue surpluses from the financial performance
ofthe college based income generating activities and UNES limited. This fund represents the
financing contribution of IGUs and UNES to the University. The ICU'S and UNES Limited
surplus/ (deficit) is charged to this fund.
General Fund
The general fund caters for capital development receipts as well as capital grant donations in form
ofassets from government and development partners e.g. research projects. The depreciation of
such donated assets is charged to this fund and expenditure incurred for the capital development
receipls from government is transferred from this fund as deferred income to the statement of
performance.
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Special Capital Development Fund
This fund holds funds set aside for special capital development in the University.
Capital Reserve
The capitaf reserve was created to .cater for the increases qf the revaluations of prqperty, plant and
equipment canied out after every five years. The revaluation decreases and depreciation ofthe
revalued property, plant and equipment are first charged to this reserve and any excess charged to
the statement of financial performance.
Revenue Reserve
The Revenue reserve is created out ofrevenue surpluses, which arise out ofthe normat business
activities ofthe University and is used to meet future expenses or deficits.

xv. Cash and Cash Equivalents

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call
and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, whiih are readily
convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in value and
any bank overdrafts that may have been acquired in the period. Bank account bilances include
amounts held at various commercial banks al the end ofthe financial vear.

xvi. Budgetinformation

The original budget for FY 202212023 was approved by the Ministry of Education on 24rh June
2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in
accordance with the specific approvals from the Ministry Education and the National rreisury.
The revisions to appropriations are made to the original budget by the university upon receiving
the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.
The University's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual statement of performance
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on uccruui basis using
a classification based on the functions with nature of expenses disclosed for each functional unit
in the statement offinancial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a commitmenr (cash)
basis using nature of expenses. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the
accrual basis to the commitment (cash) basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same
basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a
comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts.
In addition, adjustments to amounts in the financial statemenls are also made for differences in
the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and
the approved budget.
A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actual as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under l8 (3) ofthese financial statements.

xvii. Comparative figures

where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

xviii. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023.
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5. Significant Judgments snd Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the University's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, eqtimates and assumptiorls that affect the reportgd amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting year. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future years.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
University based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the University. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS
1.140

Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:

. The condition of the asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the University
o The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

o The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed
. AvailabiliW offunding to replace the asset
o Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure ofthese estimates of provisions is included in Note 4 (xiii).

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is
material-
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INCOME
Rccurrent Ccpitstion Grrnt
Description

1

6

7

Govemment Capitation
Special Capitation

Capital Development Grdnts

The govemment capitation is mcsnt to subsidize
University. Capital development grants were fun

. 2021n022
Ksb,

5,654,440,294

70,000,000

5,724,440294
the govemment sponsored students and m€et op€rational costs for the
ds for renovation of Wangari Mathai Institute.

2021n022
Ksh.

Tultion and Other Releted Charges
Description

Tuition F€es rnd Other RGIrted Chrrges
Faculty Of Agriculture
Faculty Of Arts & Social Sciences

Faculty OfBusiness And Management Science
Faculty Of Education

Faculty Of Engineering

Faculty Of Health Sciences

Faculty Of Law
Faculty Of Science And Technolory
Faculty OfThe Built Environmenr And Design
Faculty Of Vaerinary Medicine

Other Academic Charges

Thcs€ ar€ reve-nues reccived from students for thc tcaching pro
charges inclu& applicstion and gmduation fees for the year.

8 Accommodation rnd Crtering Fees

9

Description

Students Accommodation

Catering and Other Charges

Accommodation and cataing revenu$ arc fees charged to students for services offered.

Rentsl lncome
Description

Staff Housing

Rent From Facilities

67,635,866
,140,565,558

498,218,390

193,080,008

233,?53,188

1,658,279,083

27t,353,550
268,201,574

200,91 1,693

47,227,105

3,878,726,015

49,770,805

3,928,496,820

grams offered to them by the univcrsity. Other scademic

2021n022
Ksh.

1t0,937,792

24,190,562

r35,1283s4

2021n022
Ksh.

t48,893,734

47,427,451

l9612r,lE4
Rental lncome is revenue from leasing facilities and rent &om staff houses.
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l0 Finence Income

Dcscription 2021n022
Ksh.

t7,795,t38Bank Intercst lncome

t7,795,,t38

Finance Income is revenue received from interests on deposits

I I UON Subsidirri€s Incomes

Description 202rn022
Ksh.

242,000Income from University ofNairobi Press

Revenue from UNES Ltd operations

Revenue from ICUs Held by UNES Ltd

242,000

Thcsc are incomes from subsidiaries owned by thc University. Subsidiaries incomes were reclassified from the statemenl
offinancial position to statement offinancial performance in accordance with IPSAS 9 on revenue recognition. The
reclassification did not affect the prior y€ar.

12 Oihcr lncomes
Description

Research Administration Fees

Agency Fees (lnsurance & Hirc Purchase)

Sale Of Tender Documents

lnvestrnent Income

Miscellaneous Income

lncomes form UON IGUs

Decrease in Provision for Bad Debts

153,129,276

Miscellaneous Income ar€ incomes relating to late fee charges and other revenues from non-core activities. Incomes from
IGUS were reclassified from previously stated in staterncnt offinancial position to statement offinancial performance in
accordancc with IPSAS 9 on recognition of revcnue.

EXPENSES

13 Employee Cost
Description 2021n022

Ksh.

4,780,730,103

t,728,877,328

696,079,998

t82,699,778

871,498,376

716,063,303

97,502,506

2,436,891

294,017 ,293

9J69,90s576

202rn022
Ksh.

134,365,638

5,098,933

74,000

3,031,422

10,559,282

Basic Pay

House Allowance

House To Officc Allowance

Staff Gratuity
StaffPension & Nssf Employer Contribution
Doctors/Clinical Allowance
Leave Allowance

Passage & Baggage Allowance

Other Personnel Allowanc€s

Other allowances includc car, entertainment, furniture, acting and special allowance.
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202rn022

K3h.
l4 Provision for Module II Direct Service Providers

This is a bost provision for Module Il programs that have been
the cost of Module tI pograms revised during the year.

15 Use of Goods and Senices
Administr.tiotr Erp€nse
D€scription

Travelling and Transport.

Publishing and Printing
Purchase of Uniforms
Oflice Expensc

Postal Expenscs

Telephones

ICT, Intemet scrvice and licenses

Insurances

Bank Charges

Tender Expenses

Conferencc and Seminan
Membership Subscriptions

Provision for Audit Fecs

Oflicial Entcrtainment
Transport Operating Expenses

Funeral Expcnses

t egal Fees

Performance Contracting aaivities & ISO Expenses

Public relations expenses

UEB Experse

Industrial Relations

Fixed Assets Tagging and Valuation Expenses

National Valucs and Cohesion

Plac€ment Fees and CUE
Work plan Key Initiatives
Staff Development

Publicity and Corporate Image expense

Land Rents and Rates

Electricity
Water

Medical Expense

lntemational Travel
Compliance Charges

Staff Performance Appraisal

Hire Of Transport Plant &Machinery

596,827 201
undertaken in the ycar. The varlance is due to incaeas€ in

2021n022
Ksh.

8,39r,283
2,551,056

l,120,896

28,997,987

t4,223,264

t3t,574,216
56,351,564

t5,532,027

392,872

2,531,270

1,899,582

4,640,000

18,410

33,108,000

1,417,050

64,581,393

18s,680

972,254

3,042,650

451,4t4
t39,572

47,345,000

1,647,100

6,558,040

6,658,512

193,388,322

66,926,996

286,851,406

4,E72,241

534,100

37 | ,978
65,000

20 ll'ir ! e



l

I.JNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 3N June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINAhICIAL STATEMENTS cont'd
Expenses from UON IGUs
Provision for Bad Debts

Acadcmic Expense

Descrlption

Field Work & Teaching Practice

Teaching Matcrial Expenses

Travelling and Transport

Purchase of Exam Stationary

Books and Periodicals

ICT Consumables

Extemal Examiners

Postgraduate Programs

Research and Publications

Senate Expenses

Graduation Expenses

Marketing of Academic Programs

M.O.U Programs

Expenditure from service units

Awards and Prizes

Totrl Operetions Expense

67,861,000
'1,055,202,136

2021n022
Ksh.

7 t,832,283

4l,583,475

t,9t2,7t4
t0,928,874

t6,786,769

361,379

20,586,079

23,213,558

5,4E0,847

8,I 53,213

2,807,997

8,775,660

170,000

612,000

2t3?04$47
1r68,406,982

The reduction in usc of goods and services expenditure in FY 20222023 was attributed to various initiatives such as

susained automation of payment procass to minimize usage ofpaper, fleet contol, monioring and Reducing expenditure
on utilities to the bare minimum, adopting ussge ofe-paper and negotiating contracted scrvices downwards

202rn022
Ksh.

16 Council Erpense 6f25,150
Council expenses remained relatively the same. The reduction ln expens€s was attributed to lowcr travclling and olfic€
expenscs during the year under review.

l7 Deprcci.tion
Description

Buildings

lntangible Assets

Motor Vehicle

Computers

Furniture and Equipment

Academic Attirc

Less: Crants Assets Depreciation

6145s3r23

Depreciation expense reduced due to increase in fully depreciated assets during the year under rcview,

2021n022
Ksh.

443,019,7 45

2,t24,422
46,044,733

45,356,969

122,951,534

3,010,000

662,507,404
(47,9s4,180)
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18 Repoirs end Malntensnce

Description

. Maintenance of Buildings
Halls Expenses

Repair & Maintenance of Equipment
Repair & Maintenance of Motor Vehicles

Repairs and Msintenanct increased in the current ycar due to various expenses
vehicle and equipmcnt.

l9 Contr.cted Servlces

Description

Contracted Security Services

Cleaning & Waste Management(Environmental Management)

Contractcd Security scrvices rcduced during the year as rcsult ofthe rc-negoti
force during rcccss.

20 Student rrYelfrre Expense

Description

Sports and Games (lnter-University)
Purchase OfFood Stuff
Purchase Of Gas

Halls Expemes

Purchase Of Cutlery And Beddings

Students Activities Expenses

Student Admission & Orientation

Student admission and oricntation and
kitchem to provide meals for studcnts

2l UON Subsidirries Expenses

Descriptlon

also work study program. Including the reopening ofstudent cafsterias and
upon resumption of face to face lesming.

67,08r327
Student Welfale Expenditure increased due to increased studert activities such as spons alld games, UNSA activities,

2021n022
Ksh.

37,932,479

t7,7 44,51I

8,606,91r

64283,902

incuned in maintaining buildings, moror

2021n022
Ksh.

I t2,368,058

98,479,455

210,u75t3
ated contract and also scaling down ofwork

202tn022
Ksh.

7,037,886

r 8,590,970

5,041,569

5,021,212

43,839

3l,345,850

202tn022
K3h.

2021n022
Ksh.

74,25t,766

74,251,766

Expenditure from UON Press Operations
Expenditure from UNES Ltd Operarions
Expenditure from IGUs Held by UNES Lrd

These are expatse from subsidiaries owned by
statement of financial position to the statement

the University. These were rcclassified from Feviously repo(ed iD the
of financial performance in accordance with IPSAS 9 on recognition of

revenuc.

22 Finrnce Co6t
Description

Interest on [ran
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23 OtherGains/(Losses)

Description

Gair/( Loss) on Sale ofAsscts

Gain/(l,oss) on Foreign Exchange Transactiolts

Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value ofDental Material

2022nO23

Ksb.
I11300,400

194,722,077

t4,288,226

2021t2022

Ksh.
t8.22i.i50

(9.675.498)

5.4t7.7'76

220310,70, 11,96s,628

Othcr Gainsl (l,osses) incrcused and this rvas attributed to gains lrom salc ol lsscts. incrcused r aluc of dcntal materials

and incrcijsc in li)reign c\chrnSc trdnsaction

2{ Cash and Cash Equivalents

Description

Cash at Bank

t.INES Cash at Bank

2022n023
Ksh.

t,7?0,370,708
22,005,075

202t t2022

Ksh.

l.170.471,829
'71 ,277 .651

1,7Y2375:184 I'!t.lI,?s1,480

( ash and cash equi\alcnts incrcased marginall) duc to incrcascd rcccipts lrom Granls that remaincd unutilircd al thc end

ol thc \eirr.

Financial Institution Account Number 2022n023 202t 12022

UoN Bank Accounts kh Ksh

Cu rrent Accounl
ABSA 094-82155 r5 65,305,E52 19.917.91 I

ABSA 091-8:455i I 105,820,517 1'7.036,119

ABSA 2021689274 62,952273 t7,620,2i8

ABSA 2029090141 33,206,033 80.4S8.886

ABSA 20i4715907 2,766,057 2.674.172

ABSA 201277080i 2,448,675 569.40 |

ABSA 2012770838 2,991,01I | ,911,776

ABSA 2032171362 7,450,736 2i.281,7 56

ABSA 20i2770625 34,32t,085 5i4,503

ABSA 45t413414 12,700,391 22.295,107

ABSA

ABSA

22710i:i02 18,544,903 3 5.8 59.8 5 7

77500050i 12,491,454 6,213,141

ABSA 09,1-8245151 30,960,916 I I. 162,450

Kenva Comnrercial Bank I 10.1657t t2 t95,582,717 3 89.608.875

Kenva Comnrercial Bank

Kenva Commercial Bank

| 104828960 351,968,362 243,950,626

I 121857126 8,439,735 8,347,9 t0

Kenva Cornmercial Bank l7t3it20 6,378,491 6t,394,1 33

Kenva Commercial Bank IIU980t554 12,284,365 i9.857.728

Kenya Commercial Bank 1 I'71 1'7 5'7 07 4,033,332 l ,005,7 r 0

Kenva Commercial Bank I 104698676 38,675,5t5 5t,471,2t6

Standard Chartered Bank 87020-9?8423-00 410,047,095 2i8.540.I 86

Standard Chartered Bank 9i020-97834 t -01 332,090,282 65.488.385

Safariconr M-PFSA 1,563,432 I .000

ABSA 201599'766t 840 I .048

ABSA 20.t5997688 840 1.048

1,763,034,9t I 1.363.318.868
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25 Short Term Deposits

Description

Trust and Endowment Funds

Current Trade Receivsbles
26 Receivables from non-erchenge Trenscctions

D€scription

UON Recunent Capitation
GOK 2010-2013 cBA
Other Public Universities

Less: Provision for bad & doubrful debts

27 Recelvebles from exchrnge Trsnsactions
Dcscription

Sundry Debtors

Baak Guarantees

Student Debtors

UON Press Receivables

UNES Receivables

Less: Provision for bad & doubtful debts

Provision for Brd & Doubtful Debts
Provision as at 0l luly 2022
Provision as at 30 June 2023
Increasc{Decrcase) in Provision

202tn022
Krh.

425,912

425,912

2021n022
Ksh.

70,000,000

I ,232,934 ,494
194,757,890

1,497,692384
(74,884,619)

1,422,807,765

2021n022
Ksh.

444,764,726

10,004,956

1,282,888,796

409,592,537

2,147,2,51,.015

(86J87,076)

2,060,863,938

(93,410,695)

(t6t27t,695)
67,861,000

3,,183,67 I ,703

UON PRESS Bank Accounts
Financial Institution Account Number 2021t2022
Current Account Ksh
ABSA 0777001914 3,80s,440
ABSA 094-8214946 3,349,521

7,15496t
UNES LTT) 7r277,65t
TOTA.L t,44t,751d80

Totel Currcnt Trrdc Rcceivrbles
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cont,d
28 lnvcntorles

Descrlption

Gcneral Stocks

Dental Materials

UNES IGUS & Cafeterias

UNES Booksore

2021n022
Ksh.

.147,905,510

53,783,1l5

3,159,915

39,52t,699

244,370239

The Univcrsity keeps inventory for teaching matcrials and day+o-day consumables that rernain unused as

at 30 June 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cont'rl
29 Propert}, Plant and Equipment

cost Ltnd Buildlngs

( ()sl as al I .lul\ 2021
l'rior Yc:rr Adiustmcnt
Arjditional Asscls ( [;ON )

Addilional Asscls ((;ran1\)
(i)mpletcd Pr()iects
I{c\ rluali()n
I)ispo\a I

Kshs
I 8(,..1.17.265.{ D{ }

K!hs
2l -( )5.1. 

'l { (r. ( ) l(,

Work h
Progrcss

IGh3
:58.50{).-lIe

100-517.J67

{ 101-2 r0.272;

FltrniturG
tnd

Equipmcrt
Kshs

l.597.8-',t9.()()t)

I l.76().0(x)
:0.7 n.(x)0
I I.26e. t87

l. I lt0.{x}0

Compulcrs

Kshs
1. r87.-109.000

I l l.76o.(XX))
.15.708.(XX)

ll. l]5.7It5

Motor
Vchlclcs

Acrdcmic
Gowrs

Kshs
70.].791.5 l6

Kshs
61).200.{)0{)

Blologicsl
A!3ct!

Totrls

Kshc
I 8. t09 9(X)

Kshr
2r3526463,7Et

16,,947,467
9,6t4,,972
(5.4(D,07t)

204,700,000

I5.:1i0.0{)0
q7.6.1t . t 9.1

:0.1.700.(x)0
( I2J.510.06n) (l2,1530,05t)

Cost r! et 30 Junc 2022
('ost as rl I .lul) 2022
,\dditional Asscts (L'( )N )
Additioni]l Assct\ ( Lirants)
l)isposal
C.rpitalization

I 85,44 7J65,000
l 8(r.{17.16i.{x)0

22,I 50,987,230
:1.15{).987.210

254,797,524
t51.797.5 2l

2,642,160,tt7
:.61:.760. t 87

15.0l5.i8.l
9{).61t.7 t6

(5.{.J66.9i7)
9.766..re8

1,445,492,7t5
t.lt5.1el.7lt5

6l. 718.7_',r l
.'] 1..i97. t27

t127 -t2t)
90{..191

12. I 28.09i

799,.44,44t
79q.2.1.1..1,18

60,200,000
d).1(x).000

.1.1.18.(xx)

t 8,109,900
I lt. l0() 9{){)

2r3,El&ts7,074
2t3,8ttJ57,074

92,0t2,1l6
r6r,696571
< 360,467\

23,014,078
r:..ll0.llll
:0.172- ll5l (ll.{(x).9{6 )

-'i9.6(,7.728
(i0-777.500 ) l_'llt8.qt0)

ll.95r)
C onrplctcd I'ro lccts
Cost rs rt 30 Jurc 2023 l8 447 2 22 22 7l 78 I l0t

t.7llt.lt I i.82l :.088.010..t l0

76

l.l I 1.0{18..10{ 7o3.1'10.766 I l.tl7.1..ttll
' ( ll-1.) i(,.r lr'l( r

000 I 7 940 2t 7t

5,794,0466E4
(r24J30,06E)

Depreciation & I mpairment
Accumulaled I)cFeciation LlLll\ 2021
Accumulatcd I)c'prcciation on
Disflosal

iod
Acc Dcp 30 JUDG 2022
Accumulaled I)eprcciation I .lulr 2012
Accurnulatcd l)cpreciation on
l)isposal

( hrr e lin lhc

( hirpc li)r thr:

l.ll.0 t9-7{5 l:1.00i.0 t0 l5.i81.3t2 .16.0.11.7.13 3-0t0.(xx)
2.t9r.E33567
l.t9l-lt11-567

2,211.023J20
2.t I t.0:3.i20

(5-1.166.e37)

1257,4fi,717
r.25 7.450.7 t7

t717.12tt

624,7a5,432
6 2.1. 7li 5.1.1 2
(i{).777.500 )

44,t&rJ82
ll.ri13-l.lttl

6)29.976,417
6)29976"417

(8s,971Js7)

pcri, 'rl {l -i.(,7 l.or)6 ()1.120.561 51. t.17.8e0 51.929.5.16 3.222.t(x)
Acc 30 Jure 2023 2 173 7 9$r 7l 7 77 782
Ncl Book Vrlu. 7 r9 o7 t4E 22 o29 o72 22 I 191 t99 I
trN IIS Ilalanccs
I rON I'ress
Irull) l)cprcciated Assers
Acc. l)cpreciation

r6. t.r0.251
116.95i

618.767.291
l6lli.767.2ql)

l.(,61i.96(r
l9.ll r

5i7.117.377

ll.22 7.51t6

It 11 7 940 207 t2 I 7

3r,026,803
455J94

1347 29a,Ot7I 96.I ( )-l .3.1ll
(196.-l{)3.1{8) (t 9E,0r 7)

NBV 30 Junc 2023 tE6.447 000 t9,548,07 I48 222,396577 577 7Al 2Et 7E5 t6J4 18 t7

16

r49Jt0743,940 207
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cont'd

30 Investments

Trust lnd Endowment Funds Inv€stments No. Ordinary
Sheres

202u2022

Ksh.

G.ndhi Mcmorirl Acedemy Soci€ty

East Africa Breweries Limited @ Shs. 2/-

Car and Gcneral (Karya) Limited @ Shs. 5/-

Unga Limitcd @ Shs. 5/-

Kcnya Powcr and Lighting Co. Limited @ Shs. 2.50/-

Krmeh Gold Mcmorirl Fund

Kenya Power and Lighting Co. Limited @ Shs. 2.50/-

Tom Mboyr Memorial Fund
East Africa Brcweries Limited @ Shs. 2/-

20520

30444

28782

8944

7904

62586

2,8t6,370

I,347,147

874,973

t2,790

5,051,280

r 1,303

llJ03

8,s89,929

13,65251I

100,000

3,809,495

17,562,006

2021n022

Ksh.

10,736,1l2

I 14,000

2,t24,422

2238,422

a,497,690

145,000

8,6{2,690

202tn022
Ksh.

232,923,624

14,706,578

Inv€stment Not Attrlbutable To Any Particular
Fund
Investment in Univenity ofNairobi Enterprises and
Services Limited (UNES)

Guarantee for University Press

N/B: Investnents in UNES ltd and UON Press have bcen eliminated during consolidation in order to comply with
consolidation of subsidiarics accounts procedures.

3l Intrngible Assets

Description

UON ltrtrngiblc Asscts

Accumulated Depreciation I July 2022

Amortizrtlon Chrrgc

Nct book Vrlue 30 June 2023

UNES Ltd Brlsnces

32 Funds Held by UNES Ltd
Deccription

Funds Held by UNES Ltd I July 2022

Income from IGUs held by UNES for the Year

247,630202

N/B: Funds held by UNES Ltd are inter-compqny transactions thar arc also recognized as non-currcnt liabilities in thc prior
year. Thes€ funds were eliminated during consolidation in the current year in accordance to IPSAS 6 (43-46).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cont'd
Current Lisbilities

33 Trede rnd Otbcr Pryrbles
Description

General Payables

Students' Fee Pr€payments

Rent & Deposits Refundable

DSP Payables

Koitalel Samoei Fund

UNES Payables

34 Statutory Payables

D€3crlptlon

Kcnya Revenue Authority (Paye and VAT)
National Hospital lnsurance Fund

National Sccurity Social Fund

UoN Pension

Higher Education Loans Board

35 Curent Provisions

De3criptbn

Provisions For Audit fecs UON
Provisions For Audir fees UON PRESS

Provisions For Lcave Days

Provision -Staff Gratuities

36 A&SA Tcrm l,oan
DeEcriptlon

ABSA Loan as at 0l Jlly 2022
Loan Reflayment

Descriptlon

37 LrNES Ltd long term Liabilities

N/B: LrNES Ltd long term liabilities formed pan ofUe inter-compsny assct transsctions of Ksh 2,16,608,147 which
was eliminat€d in the current year during consolidation.

202tn022

Ksh.

418,184,912

636,3ss,291

194,626,088

696,167,2t2

169,864,056

336,805,04s

2,452,002,604

2021n022

Ksh.

5,012,864,509

6,395,200

13,612,871

5,533,4E6,294

267,906

10,566,626,779

2021n022

rch.
4,732,800

377,442,t95

385,182.956

767357,9s1

202U2022

Ksh.

738,888,889

(105,5s5,556)

633,333,332

2021n022

Ksh.

269,04E,284

2tll'rq,r
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cont'd

38 Special Accounh and Grants

Ford Foundation

Rockefel ler Foundation

lntemational Development Research Center

National Research Funds(NRF)

World Health Organisation

lnternational Aids Vaccine Initiatives

World Trade Organization

Centre for Disease Conlrol (CDC)

African Economic Research Consortium (AERC)

National Instilute of Heahh

USAID

Other Grants

Receipts

Ksh.

19,129,67 5

8,4s0,510

458,646,810

12s,t81,646

466,7 58,587

23,732,925

175,355,44 r

l,390,254,1l6

2,096,9 t0,381

Expenditure

Ksh.

25,913,796

345,000

4t,797,523

70,246,235

351 ,843,69 t

t60,382,406

t38,524

527 ,534,673

28,389,322

20t,932,899

1,387,768,598

2,030,243,536
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NOTES TO THE FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS conr'd

39 Trust end Endowment funds
Description

Gandhi Academic Sociity
Kenya Railways
A.C.l. De Souza Memorial
R.G. Amin Bunary
Kamala Gold Memorial
Tom Mboya Mernorial
M.M. Bhatt Trust
Eng.Carry Oregge - Civil Engineering Prizes
Meteorology CBPS - IGAD climate Prediction
Prof. J.OAgumbah - Theriogenology Award
other Endowments
TOTAL TRUST FUNDS

40 Endowment for Gcnerel Purposes

4l Generrl Fund
Description

Balance b/f
Add: Donated Assets (Grants)
Less: Deprcciation

tl2 Net funds from IGUs & UNES

52,421,473

2021n022
Ksh.

16,06t,015,222
50,684,972

954,180
16,063

2021n022
Ksh,

2't,6t6,639
662,903
24,440

393,239
39,972

t6,362,683
103,866

I 10,000
325,026
90,000

t2,692,704

30 June 2023
Brlrnce

Ksh.
10,544,884
2t,294,657
2,948,775

296,188
6261,t59

t3,493,024
23,542,397
9,E51,802

Ircome Gcnentlng Units- Frculties

Central IGUS Units
Faculty Of Agriculture
Faculty Of Arts & Social Sciences
Faculty Of Commerce
Faculty OfEducation
Faculty OfEngineering
Faculty Of Health Science
Faculty Of Science Technology
Faculty Of Veterinary Medicine

Othcr lncomc Gcncnting Units
Chiromo Parlour
Diagnostic Radiolory
Dental Plaza IGU
UoN Library
Eye Ccntre
Dental School

I Jtuly 2022
Brlsnce

K3h.
3,132,353

14,134,482
5,563,789

1,089,4E3
13,315,217
42,113,385
13,024,626

Rcccipts
K3h.

43,266,767
46,t04;179

2t4,856
985,E88

7,9?7,400
15,463,70E
17,760,754
6,964,987

Psymcnts
Ksh.

35,8s4,236
38,944:605
2,829,870

689,700
2,805,72s

152E5,901
36,331,742
10,137,E I I

7065 2l 005 27 t0't,27 t t3 82 18,721 993

E,587,6t9
(t,073,676)

4,l4l,600
6,71I,l l3

(1,980,067)

26,687,829
2,704.300

25,t04,782
10,636,909
5,919,860

20,694,690
2,787,690

22,977,923
3,386,r83
6,7 t0,933

14,580,829
(l,157,066)

6,26t,459
13,961,139
(2,771,t40)

6,54 70,731 708 603

722 7t

5

UNES Ltd IGUs and Expenses I9 708 66 793 68 t47 8l
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cont'd
Net funds fron IGUg & UNES

Descrlptlon

Net Funds From IGU's as at | )uly 2021

Net Income From IGU's for The Period

UNES Ltd Reserves

Net Funds From IGU'S as at 30 June 2023

43 Capltel Rcserves

Descriptlon

Opcning Balance

lncreaser'(Decrease) in Revaluation

Less: Insremental Depreciation on Revalued Assets

Closing Balance

44 Revenue Rcccrves

Description

Accumulated SurpluV (Deficit) b/f
Prior Year Adjushent
Adjusted Balance b/f
Funds from IGU's Uf
UON Accumulated SurpluV (Deficit) for the Period

Investment in Subsidiaries

UNES consolidation

Add: Incrcmcntal Depreciation on Revalued Assets

Accumulated Surplus/ (Deficit) c/f

45. Cesh Genereted from Operations
Descrlption

Delicit for the year b€fore
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Increase(Decrease) in Provision for Doubtful debts
Gains and Other losses

Research Grants Income
Research Grants Expense
Working Capital adJustmetrts
Increase in inventory
Increase in receivables
Increase in payables

Net cssh flow from operating rctivities

2021n022
Ksh.

(770,203,802).

38,186,286

(49,484,643)

(781,$2,r59)

202tn022
Ksh.

189,548,821.885

204,700,000

( 102,408,180)

l89,5sl,t 13,705

2021no22

Ksh.
(6,753,8s5,907)

(s9,7s2,875)

(5,813,508,78r)

(2,103,463,954)

102,408,180

(t,Er4,664,sso

202tn022
Ksh.

(2,103,463,954)

614,553,223
67,861,000

( 13,965,628)
4,099,144,711

(4,174,906,411)

35,886,449
16,055,005

2,097,40'1,998

638,572394
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NOTES TO THE FINA^ICIAL STATEMENTS conr'd
46. Financial Risk Management
The University's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credir and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The University's or"rill risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the bqsiness environment aqd seeks to
minimize the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by serting acceptable levels
of risk. The University's does not hedge any risks and has in place poliCies through iti statute xxx
which states among other rhings:

All fees and other charges due shall be paid at the commencement of the semester they are
due and not beyond the third week of the semester. No student shal be allowed into the
lecture, examination room or participate in activities which they have not fully paid for.
The University shall withhold any and all services, examination results, conferment of any
degree, certificate and diploma until all outstanding fees are settled and further reserve thi
right to institute legal recovery proceedings against students with outstanding fees and also
surcharge an interest at a rate to be determined by the council from time to time.

The University has endeavored to enforce the above statute in order to reduce the student debtors.
The University secured a written undertaking from the covemment of Kenya with respect to the
outstanding debt relating to the Pension Component ofthe CBA.
The University's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

Credit risk
The University has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivabtes and available-for-sale financial investmenti.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer. taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemal or
exlemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the
statement offinancial position are net ofallowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the

University's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
University's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value oi any
collateral obtained is made up as follows:

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the company has recognized in the financial statements is considered
adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.
The University has significant concentration ofcredit risk on amounls due from students
The Council sets the University's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within
which the various aspects ofcredit risk management are operated.

Financial Risk Management
ultimate responsibility for Iiquidity risk management rests with the University's council, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
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University's shoG medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requircments. The
University manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash

flows.

Note

Totrl rmount

Ksh.

I,792,37 5,784
436,457

1,427,692,384

2,007,469,823
23s,896,276

. FullY
performing

Ksh.

Prst due.

Ksh.

Imprired

Ksh.

(7 r,384,619)

(85,991,30e)

At 30 June 2023
Bank balances

Short Term Deposits
Receivables from non -exchange
transactions4oK
Rcceivables from exchange transactions
lnventories

24
25

26

t,792,37 5,784
436,4s7

|,427,692,384 I,427,692,384

2,007,469,823
235,896,276

27
28

Note

Total .mount

Ksh.

l,441,751,480
425,9t2

t,497,692,384

2,t47,25t,0t5
?44,370,239

Fully
performing

Ksh.

Prst duc

Ksh.

Impairrd

Ksh.

(74,884,6r9)

(86,387,076)

At 30 June 2022
Bank balances

Short Term Deposits

Rcccivables from non-exchange
transactions-GoK
Reccivables from exchange transactions
Invcntories

24
25
26

27
28

I,441,751,480
425,912

t,497 ,692,384 t,497 ,692,384

2,t47 ,25t,0t 5
244,370,239

Trade and Other Payebles
Gcneral Payables

Students' Fce Prepayments

Rent & Deposits Refundable

DSP Payables

Koitalel Samoei Fund

LJNES Payables

Strtutory Pryrbles
Currcnt Provlslons

Note

14,145,349,502

Financiel Ratios.
The university uses financial ratios to measure the performance of profits, liquidity and
leverage. The analysis indicate that the University's performance has been deteriorating over
the past five years putting conc€rn over the sustainability of its operations in the future.

Management has an€sted the issues underlying the ailing ofthe university, which include, but
not limited to; reduction in capitation remitted from the Govemment, high wage bill that is

dictated by staff unions, and reduced revenue from declining numbers of students registered
for module II programs. Measures have been put in place to aid in the recovery which will see

reduced operational costs, settlement ofoutstanding crcdits and increased revenues.

33

33

33

33

33

33

u
35

Kshs
418,184,9 r 2

636,355,29t
194,626,088

696,167,212
696,167,212
169,864,056

10,s66,626,779

767,357,95t
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The University has registered negative profit margins from FY 20 I 8/20 l9 to the current financial
year. In FY 202212023 the university registered profit margins of negative g.47%. The negative
Retum On Assets ratio from FY 2018/2019 to FY 2022/2023 above indicates rhat the instiiution
in not using its assets eflectively to generate income. The current ratio and acid test ratios of less
than 1.00 as recorded from FY 20l8lz0l9 to FY 2022/2023 indicates difliculty in settling short
term liabilities as and when they fall due. Despite the adverse profitability position, the
University has maintained a healthy debt ratio of less than 0.5 from FY 20 | 8/20 l9 to the current
financial year which gives room for addition of more debt to finance the institution's operations.

47. Market risk
The Council has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
the University on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal
accounting and operational controls.
Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices
and foreign exchange rates which will affect the University's income or the value of its holding of
Financial instruments. The objective ofmarket risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Overall responsibility
for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
The University's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Commiftee) and for the day to day implementation of those policies.
There has been no change to the University's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures lhe risk.

2018t2019 2019t2020 2020t2021 2021t2022 2022t2023
Ksh.

Million
Ksh.

Million
Ksh.

Million
Ksh.

Million
Ksh.

Million
Total Revenue 12,312 12,843 9.738 10, I 56 11,64t
Surplus/ (Deficit) -l,305 -1,624 -3,il 1 -2,103 -986
Total Assets 215,866 216.124 7t3,048 212,947 2t2,486
Total Liabilities 10,055 I 3. l9l 14,698 16.828 17,356
Current Assets 5,4s8 6,727 5,3 r0 5,170 5,306
Current Liabilities 7,368 10.269 l 1,565 t3.786 14,735
Cash & Cash Equivalents 843 t,795 t,5 t0 |,442 t,793
Inventory 231 245 280 244 236
Financial Ratios
Profitability Ratios
Profit Margin -10.60% -t2.65% -31 .95Yo -20.700/0 -8.47%
Return on Assets -0.60% -0.7 50/. -l .46Yo -0.99% -0.460/.
Liquidity Ratios
Cunent Ratio 0.7 4 0.66 0.46 0.38 0.12
Acid Test Ratio 0.71 0.63 0.43 0.36 0.34
Cash Ratio 0.tI 0.17 0. t3 0.1 0.12
Leverage Ratios
Debt Rario 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.08 0.08
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cont'd
48. Cepital Risk Management
The objective ofthe University's capital risk management is to safeguard the Council's ability to
continue as a going concem. The University's capitaI structure com of the following funds:

2021n022
Kshs

16,063,746,013

(781,502,159)

189,651,t 13,705

(8,814,664,s56)

2,070,756,728

s2,42t,473
16,181,338

198r58,0s2F41

General Fund

Net funds from IGUs and parallel programs

Capital Reserves

Revenue Reserves

Special Accounts and Grants

Trust and Endowment funds

Endowment for General Purposes

Totel Funds

Total Bonowings

Less: Cash and Bank Balance

Net Debt/(Excess Cash and Cash equivalent)

Geering

Note
4t
42

43

44

38

39

40

33-36

2+25
14,419,320,667

1,442,177,392

15,861,498,0s9

8%

49, Relrted prrties
Univerrity ofNelrobi Enterprlscs (UNES) Ltd
University ofNairobi Enterprises ([JNES) is a related company by virtue ofit being wholly owned by
Univcnity of Nairobi.
Compeny Shrre Holding Amount

(Klh)
trNES Ltd 100% 100,000

UON Press l00o/o 3,809,495

Governmcnt of Kcnyr
The Govemment ofKenya is the principal shareholder ofthc Entity, holding 100% ofthe Entity's €4uity
interest.
Other Relrtcd Perties
Ministry of Education, Science
R€l.tcd party Trrnsactions

and Technology is the parcnt ministry to Univ6si of Nairobi

Trrnlfers from GoK
Recurrent Capitation
Amount Duc from GoK
Capitation-University of Nairobi
CBA 2010-2013 Pension Arrears
CBA 2010-2013 Other Public lnstitutions

Amount Due fiom UNES
Bookstore takcn ovcr
Amount held by UNES on behalfofUoN
IcUs Management Fces Charged by UNES

202U2022
Ksh

5,724,440394

70,000,000
I,232,934,494

194,757,890
r,497,592384

2t4t9,324
246,609,3E9

26t,02t,7r3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cont,d
Council Expense

Remuneration of Chairperson
Remuneration of Council Members
Council Members GPA
Air ticket
Travelling, OIfice expenses and Catering 3,665 t97

5,825,150
50, Conti t Lirbilities

51. Events rftcr the Reportitrg perlod
There werc no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period

52. Ultimrte And Holding Entity
The Univetsity of Nairobi is a Semi- Autonomous Govemment Agency under the Ministry of Fjucation,
Science and Technolory. Its ultimate parent is the Govemment of Kenla

53. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) rounded to the nearest Kshs

202y2022
Ksh

574,237
2,4t2,000

t73,726

Description 2022n023 202tn022
Ksh Ksh
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20. APPENDICES
Appendix l: Implement0tion Strtus of Auditor-General's Recommendations

The following is the.summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments. thal
were vided to the auditor.

I . Material Uncertainty in
Relation to Coing
Concem

The continued
existence ofthe
University as a going
concern is dependent
on continued
financial assistance
from goYemment and
other stakeholders.

The University of Nairobi

Council and Executive board

developed and implemented

several strategies in form of
reforms which were carried out

to stop the University from
sliding further into crisis. This
has resulted to continuous

financial performance

improYement.

Not
resolved

conlinuous

2. Personnel cost

2.1 Unremitted payroll
deductions

Completeness and

accuracy ofthe
operating results and

liabilities could not be

confirmed-

The University has continued

to remit funds to KRA on

monthly basis even under

difficult financial situations.

Since January 2021 the

University has remitted all
taxes on time and is cunenlly
on the monthly remittances.

This has caused the debt owed

to KRA not to increase for the

past twelve months in regards

to penalties and interest.

The University has continued

to remit monthly employee

pension component to avoid

accumulation of the pending

pension deduclions. The

University has continued to
engage the Pension Board of
Trustees on modalities of
clearing the outstanding

amount.

Not
resolved

contlnuous

2.2 Unsupported Unreconciled gratuity The financial statements Resolved June 2023
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staff grat uity
exPense

expense reflects the

completeness

therein.

accuracy and

of the figures

3. Loss making lncome
generating Units

The accuracy and

completeness of
balance in the
financial statements

could not be

confirmed.

Management has put in place
measures to review the
operations of the Income
Generating Units (lGUs) that
made losses with a view of
tuming them around or closing
them.

Not
resolved

Conlinuous

4. Prope(y, Plant and

Equipment

4.1. Lack ofownership
documents

Three parcels ofland,
LR No. I 1645/9715,

LR No. 22378 & LR
No. 7219i32 without
ownership
documents.

The parcel of land are fully
developed with administration
buildings, lecture theatres,
laboratories and other
academic buildings.
The management is in
engagement with the ministry
of Lands regarding the
processing ofthe title deeds

Not
resolved

Jlune 2024

4.2. Stalled Student
Accommodation
Hostels at Lower
Kabete Campus

Incomplete project.

Value for money not

obtained

This rcmains unresolved since
the University has continued to
face cashflow problems over
the years and GoK has not
allocated any Development
capitation to the University for
many years.
The University will continue to
engage lhe government for
funding. The last estimate was
given at 450 Million.

Not
resolved

Continuous

4.3 Proposed

Construclion of School of
Pharmacy

The value for money
could not obtained for
the uncompleted
project.

The University has continued
to face cashflow problems over
the years and GoK has nol
allocated any Development
capitation to the University for
many years.

The University will prioritize
complaing this moving
forward.

Not
resolved

2024

4.4 Unsupported Motor The accuracy ofthe The University invited bids for Resolved June 2023
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Vehicles cost value cost of Motor
vehicles not

confirmed.

an insurance tender for motor
vehicles. Britam Insurance

Limited which was awarded

the tender for motor vehicle

insurance valued motor
vehicles for purposes of
Insurance as value added

services. The revaluation done

was for motor vehicles that

were in use,

June 2023

4.5 Work in progress

(wrP)
4.5.1 Unsupported Work

in progress B,/F

Unsupported projects The management undertook to
reconcile the work in progress

balances and all projects were

supported.

Resolved

4.5.2 Overpayment for
Non- Working borehole

Unsupported
payments for projects

The management undertook to

reconcile the payment made for
the project and confirmed that

there was no overpayment.

Resolved lune 2023

5, Receivables from
exchange transactions

5.1 Sundry debtors Unexplained debtors Management undertook to

reconcile and support the

balances ofthe sundry debtors.

Resolved June 2023

5.2 Long outstanding

studcnts Debtors

Holding uncollectable

debts

Management has requested for
approval from Council to write
off of the long outstanding

student debtors in compliance

with the Public Finance

Management Act 2012, Public
Finance Management Act

Regulation of 2015 and

University of Nairobi Financial

regulations 2016 provide for
how to write off bad debts.

Not
resolved

Continuous

6. Unsupported and

Unremitted UON
Pension Scheme

Balance

The regularity and

valuation ofthe
pension payable

could not be

confirmed

The University has continued

to remit funds to KRA even

under difficult financial
silualions. Since January 2021

the University has remitted all
ta.\es on time and is currently
on the monthly remittances.

Not
resolved

Continuous
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This has caused the debt owed
lo KRA not to inffease for the
past twelve months in regards

to penalties and interest.

The Univenity has continued
to remit monthly employee
pension component 10 avoid
accumulation of lhe pending
pension deductions. The
University has continued to
engage lhe Pension Board of
Trustees on modalities of
clearing the outstanding
amount.

7. Long outstanding
payables

Exposure to fines and
penalties for failure to
meet obligations.

The Univenity has continued
to remit funds to KRA even

under difficuk financial
situations. Since January 2021

the University has remined all
taxes on time and is cunently
on the monthly remittrnces.
This has caused the debt owed
to KRA not to increase for the
past twelve months in regards

lo penalties and interest.
The University has continued
to rcmit monthly employee
pension component to avoid
accumulation of the pending
pension deductions. The
University has continued to
engage the Pension Board of
Trustees on modalities of
clearing the outstanding
amount.

Not
resolved

Continuous

E. Unsupported

Endowment for
general purpose

Unconfirmed fund
balance

This fund was established
around 2005 as a designated

fund for the purpose funding
students prizes and
scholarships. The fund has

remained dormanl for a long

Not
resolved

Continuous
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STEPHEN G. KIAMA,
BvM, MSC(NbD, PbD(Bcrn)KNAS
VlcG Cir.callor ii Sc.rrarry to Councll
26 J.!u.ry 202i1

timc due to cssh flow problems

faced by the univcrsity.

Howcver, students prizcs and

scholanhips arc administercd

and realizcd through trust

funds and donor Fognmmcs,

Junc 2023

Varianccs in balanccs

rcported

Thc Financial statcmcnts

reflects the accuracy and

completeness of thc fi gurcs

given therein.

Rcsolvcd

9. Rclstcd panies

balances
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ApF.di! ll: Projcct imphmclltrd by Univcrrity of Ntlmbl
rlrc Slrtc SAGA Furd.d andl or thc Gorrmmcnt

Complaion of pharmacy building x KcnyataN.Hospital GOK 6nD025
ofStudents Accommodition at l-owcr krbae

us

Complaion

GOK 8t9DO21
UoN & Scicncc Com GOK tagn021
University of Nairobi CHERAMI Cancer institute spccialist
tcachi and facilities at kabete GOK 12n D021

intcmatiomal School Hostels Main Cam us coK t4N27
Im cmcnlalion of Pro cct GOK 9t9n024

SACE dai aru Kabcte C.mPro GOK Ettt2027

Univcrsity ofNairobi Tcaching and rcferal hospitduppo ksbcte
GOK ta8Do27

Inovslion fe83ibili and Devel KabctcU ooK I v9t2027
School of Law Towers Parklands GOK MDoz',l

scd Refurbishment ofstudcnts ryclfarc hostels SWA GOK la6no26
Collcge ofarchitccturc and Engincering Prcfab Lccrure halls at
ADD GOK t7nr24
Proposed replaccmcrt of asbcstos roofs GOK 12,612024

Proposcd disability mainstraming of lifu GOK tu6t2024
psn prolcct coK 121612024
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Appendix lV: Trrnsfers from Othcr Covemmcnt Entiaies

TOTAL TRANSFER 2O2ZI2O23 5,625,967J59.00

P C. KIAMA,
BV , MSC(Nbi). PhD(B.rn)KNAS
Vlcc Chrnc.llor & S.cr.trry to Council
16 Jrnurry 2024

CPA EPHEN K. KIMELI,
B. Com, MBA (KrbU), CPA(K)
ICPAK M.mb.r No.7l28
Ag. Dlr.ctor Flnrnc.
26 Jrtrurry 2024

ENTITY NAME UNIVERSITY OF
NAIROBI

Brcak down ofTransfers from thc State Dcpdrtment Univcrsity Educatioh
FY 2022/2021
UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI

o Recurrent Grrnts
Bank Statemcnt Date Amount (KShs) FY to which the

amounts relate
tBn022 467,580,613.00 Qt - 2022t2023
9lEn022 467,5E0,613.00 Qt - 2022t2023
tot3t2022 467,580,613.00 Qt - 2022t2023
Ol - UON sub-total I ,402.74 r 

"t39.00
t I 0t2022 46?,580,613.00 Q2 - 2022/2023
12t9t2022 467,580,614.00 Q2 - 2022t2023
12t70t2022 467,5E0,614.00 Q2 - 2022t2023
Q2 - UON subaotul 1.402.741.E4t,00
2t3no23 467,580,614.00 Q3 - 2022/2023
1/t't/2023 467,5E0,614.00 Q3 - 202212023
4^412023 467.5E0.612.00 Q1 - 202212021
Qj - AON suuolol l,l()2,74t.840.00
5t5t2021 467,5E0,613.00 u - 2022/2023
6/912023 467,580,613.00 Q4 - 2022i2023
6/27/2021 467,5E0,613.00 Q4 - 2022t2023
Ol - UON sub-totol 1.402.74t.839.00

GRAND TOTAL .
RECURRENT FUNDS

5,610.967359.00

b Devclopmcnt Grrnts
Bank Statcmcnl Date Amount (KShs) FY to which the

arnounts rclatc
I I 12022 15,000,000.00 Q2 - 202?,2023
TOTIL 15.000,000.00
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A dix VII: rti on Disrster Mana cnt Er diture
Column iv Column v Column vi Column viiColumn i Column ii Column iii

Expenditure ltem Amount (Ksh.) Comment6Disaster
Type

Category Of Disestcr Rehted Activity Thrt
Requiro Expenditure Reporting
(Response/Recovery/Mitigrtion/Pr€peredness)

Progrem Sub Progrrm

HospitalizationResponse
In-Palient
Treatment 3,096,183Medical

Covid-19
infection Pandemic

Laboratory Tests &
Investigations 35,050

Laboratory
Expenses

Covid-19
infection Pandemic ResponseMedical

Personal Protecti ve
Equipment l,534,990 Purchase of PPEsMedical

Covid-19
infection Pandemic Preparedness
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